imail noun, cstablished 2007 (also see
UK Mail, founded in 2004} has been designed
and developed by UK Mail for first and second
class postal users that are looking 1o lower
producticn and postage costs, reduce the
administrative burden, mininise the environ-
mental impact of their organisation and provide
much greater control and consistency of their
brand values. ukmail.biz
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INntroduction

Revenue by Division

Parcels Mail Specialist

Business Postis the leading
independent parcel, mail and
logistics services company
within the UK and the main
alternative to Royal Mail for
business mail requirements.

Business Posl offers customers a fuli range of time-sensitive and secure
delivery eplions for parcels, letters and pallets. The Group is organised inio
three distinci divisions — Parcels, Mail and Specialist Sewvices.

Paicels is ihe largest division, with revenue of £172.3m in the year ended
31 March 2009, representing 45% cf the Group total. Offering primarily next
day Husingss-io-business, business-ig-consumer and international
collection and delivery seevices.  Parcels operates through an exiensive
national network of 52 UK sites using 2,600 vehicles. This unrivalled
infrastruclure underpins the Group's wide-ranging service offering
supparting all parcel, mail and pallet delivery options.

Operating Profit by Division
(Pre-central costs*
and exceptional items™**)

Parcels Mail Speciafist

*£12.8m
**e1m

Mail, comprising UK Mail, was the first organisation to be licensed by
Postcorm, the independent regulator, fo provide a competitive pastal
sewvice thoughout the UK. It is the Group's fastest growing division
collecting up to sixteen msllion mail items 2 day for over 1,000 customers,
including some of the UK's biggest mailers, and achieved revenue in the
year ended 31 March 2009 of £164.5m representing 42% of the Group total.
As well as providing a two-day time-delinite delivery service UK Mail also
offers a range of olher value added semvices for its customers and conlinues
to launch new product innovations.

Specialist Services consisting of the Group’s same-day courier, logistics
and pallets services generated revenue of £48.9m sepresenting 13% of the
Group total. Specialist Services offer a range of fulfilment semvices,
including ad hoc, contract and intemational courier, logistics and technical
courier solutions such as delivery swap-out and high value ingtallation
services. UK Pallets provides a dedicated pallel delivery solution operating
through a nelwork of around 80 independent distribution and logistics
specialisis with a range of next-day and three-day delivery ¢ptions.

All the divisions share a reputation for high quality delivery performance ang
excellence in cusiomer service, using information systems that are ai the
farefrant of the industry.

c
2
3]

5
je]

o
=




Men:

The Charman'’s
Statement

|G
K
[0p]
0
c
©
E
i)
<
O
L

Over the past three years, Business Post's
performance has been transformed and we
are now the UK's leading independent

integrated postal group.

(ver the past three years, Business Post’s performance has been transiormed and
we are now the UK's leading independent integrated postal group. Qur aim now is
1o consotidate this position, using our highly efficient and integrated network to drive
profitable revenue growih.

We have again made good progress in the year, despite the challenging irading
envilonment in the second hall.  We have reacled quickly to the changing
conditions, reducing our cosl base furiher which helped us to deliver anolher
significant improvement in financial performance.

UK Mail achieved good revenue and profit grawth, and further increased its market
share. Parcels profits Increased with reduced cperating costs more than affsetting
the impacl of lower revenues, and here also we grew market share. Specialist
Services also performed well.

Results

Group revenue increased by 7.6% to £386m (2008: £359m). The main factor was
the continued good growth of UK Mail where revenues increased by 19.8% to
£164m (2008: £137m).

Profil betore (axalion (belore exceplional ilemns) increased by 23.2% 1o £17.5m
(2008: £14.2m). Profit belore taxalion (afier exceptional items) increased by 15.5%
to £16.4m (2008; £14.2m}.

Businesses

QOur Mail business, UK Mail, is 2 leading supplier in the mail market. We have
developed a significant infrastructure for this business, including a natienwide
netwark of mail soration centres. Qur operational model is that mail is sent through
the same netwerk as parcels atlowing us to oplimise our operatians.

As we reach the fith anniversary of the creation of UK Mail we now collect some
17% of the mail in the UK. Our Mail business is fess exposed to levels of economic
activity as some 70% of the volume it handles is statement traffic, We continue to
see good growlh prospects for shis business, as we develop new praducts and
services that increase the markel available to us.

Cur Parcels business is cne of the leading express parcels carriers inthe UK. The
majerity of parcels revenues ae derived from a concentration on the business o
business market, which represenis some 80% of parcels revenues. This is where
aur focus will emain.

The revenues for this business were affected by the changed economic conditions
in the second half of the financial year. We have however iaken significant steps 1o
improve the operational efficiency and effectiveness of this operation.

Specialist Sewvices serve an impartant role by providing additional delivery options
1o customers. These services, principally in the areas of courier and pallet
distribution, are becoming increasingly valuabie io the Group and our customers
and we have recently won a number of new conlracts.

Board of directors

Philip Stephens will retire as non-executive director in duly 2009, having joined the
Beard in April 2004. On behalt of the Board | wou'd like to thank Phitin for his much
valued advice over thai period and wish him well in his relirement. | would like to
welcome Trevor Jenkins to the Board, his broad financial experience will be a major
benefit to the business. We have started the process of appointing a successar to
Philip, and expect to have completed this process by September 2009,

Dividends

The Board recomimend a final dividend of 10.8p per share (2008; 10.8p) giving a
tonal dividend for the year of 17.2p per share (2008: 17.2p}. The total dividend for
the year is covered 1.3 limes by adjusled eamings (excluding exceptional ilerns)
(2008: 1.0 times).

Staff and associates

twould tike 1o thank all of our staff, and cur associates working with our franchise
operations and our pallet network for the strong suppert they have provided
throughout ihe year.

OQutlook

Our husiness modet and slrategy, undempinned by a strong balance sheet, are
proving resilient in ihe current economic climale. Afer the successful
implermentaticn of change programmes over the past three years, we are now
successfully building revenue streams across a broades base of activities and with a
focus on longer term contracts in areas less directly exposed to levels of ecanomic
activity. We are welf positioned to continue to develop our business and to benefit
from further market share gains in all bugingss areas.

Our plans and management actions are based an an assumption that economic
condilions witl remain challenging throughout the curient financial year, We have
identified furlher cost reduction iniliatives, as well as a number of potential growih
ppportunities, io oifset ihe volume impact of the recessionary conditions. The
financial benefits of the recently awarded mail contracts will be felt progressively
during the first halfl of the year.

Trading in the early weeks of the new financial year has been in line with
management expeclations. Whilst there have been some tertative signs of an
improvement in market conditions, it is oo early to discern any susiainable trend.
Hawever, we are encouraged by our performance to dae and are cenfident of the
Group's ability to continue to outperform the markeds in which we operate.

Peter Kane
Chairman




Highlights

Group revenues up 7.6% to £386m (2008; £359m)

UK Mail revenues up 20% to £164m (2008: £137m)

Profit before tax (before exceptional items) up 23% 1o £17.5m (2008: £14.2m)

Profit before tax (after exceptional items) up 15% to £16.4m (2008: £14.2m)

Adjusted earnings per share ™ up 26% to 22.7p (2008: 18.0p)

Basic earnings per share down 5% to 17.1p (2008: 18.0p)

v vivi| viv|Vv| V¥

Final dividend of 10.8p per share (2008: 10.8p)

" Befare exceplional items
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BUSINESS Review
Strategy

Further year of stralegic and operational progress
Good growth in Mall, market leadership further enhanced
Parcels profits improved, and outperiormed the market

Specialist Senvices significanily ahead of last year




BUSINess Review

Strategy

We are focused on ensuring that our network
continues to cperate at the highest levels of
efficiency, and on using thal integrated network

o drive profitabie revenue growth.

The Group has again made good progress in the year. We have reacted quickly to
the changing economic condilions lo reduce our cost base further, whilst
continuing to improve custemer service and grow sur market share. UK Mail has
achieved good growth in revenues and profit, driven by new business wins and
further mail volumes from existing customers. We conlinue to make significant
gains in marke! share, and 1o develop innovative new products 10 increase the
prepartion of the market available 1o us.

Parcels revenues are down on the previous year, reflecting the difficult economic
emronment in the second half, although we are confident that we oulperformed the
market. Parcels profits increased on last year as we have reduced aur operating
costs, more than offsetfing she impact of the iower revenues. Afier thrae years of
rigorous management action, the Parcels business is now a highly effective and
competitive player in the market, with its underlying operating margin improved by
0.9% 10 9.5% in the year.

Revenues and profits in Specialisi Serviges were up significantly on last vear, with
new natioral contracts driving a strong improvemend in our Courier business, and a
lower cost base delivering significant margin improvement,

Owerall we have achieved a further significant imgrovernent én financia! perfermance
against the prior vear. Group revenues grew by 7.6% to £385.7m and prafit before
tax at £17.5m (hefore exceptional charges of £1.1m) was 23.2% up an last year.
At the year end, net cash balances had increased to £9.5m (2008: £6.2m).

STRATEGY
Cur strategy is based on four key pillars:

An integrated management approach

The integration of our business streams is key 1o our stiategy, we see this as both
previding operational and sales cpporlunilies as well as giving us a unique
proposition in the market. Ther is no other business in owr sector which provides
the range of mail/package delivery solutions we offer that operates in such a ‘joined
up’ manner as we do, with our inlegrated sales teams, customer selationship,
managers and network ¢perations.

The integration of our sales feams allows us to adopt a focused approach 1o selling,
concentrating on the range of services a customer may require, rather than solely
selling a particular product area.

The integration of our netwark operations allows us to gain econamies ¢f scale and
drive down operating cesls which provides an efficient low cost netwark, allowing
us to improve our profilahilily whilst offering very competitivety priced senvices o
our customers,

Customer orientation of our Parcels business

In addition to lhe low cost solulion our integrated netwark supports, we believe the
key to developing our parcels business is to understand and meet the changing
requirements of our customers. We seek to undersland the requirements of our
custormers through our dedicated customer care team, customer surveys and a
culture of listening to cusiomers.

The opportunities identified are then progressed through a specific project team,
with the suppen resources needed to ensure timely implementation,

Building further on our leading posilion in the dereguiated mail industry

In 2004 UK Mail was ane of he first UK operators to obtain a licence to compele
with Royal Mail. Since that time we have consistently ted the market in customer
service levels, and product innovation.

We see these factors as key differentiating factors in the UK mail market and
continug to invest in them o ensure our continued leadership position.

Exploitation of new opportunities in Specialist Services

Qur specialist service husingsses, Pallets and Courier, offer a range of delivery
services that complemeni our Mail and Parcels businesses. We see significant
apportunities o extend our offering in these areas. We have introduced a range of
additional senvices including fulfilmen, local storage and delivery and mobile
phone delivery and "swapout’,

We will continue to seek to inlroduce new initiatives in these areas.

STRATEGIC PROGRESS

Qver the past three years, the operational and financial performance of Business Post
has been very successfulty ransformed. We fave effected wholesale changesto the
operational management feams; we have reversed the structwral and operational
weaknesses in ihe Parcels business and lumed it into a business delivering market
‘eading performance; we have built UK Mail into a clear market leader: we have
created an infegrated business model bothin terms of aur network and our business
develcpment processes; we have achieved significant reductions in our cost base
whilst improving our cuslomer service levels; and we have delivered margin
improvement across the group.

As a result, Business Post has become the UK's leading independent imtegrated
nostal group.

Qur aim now is to conselidale this position. We are focused on ensuring that our
network continues 1o opesate at the highest levels of efficiency, and on using that
integrated network to drive prefitable revenve growth, We will achieve this by
developing nnovative new products and services, and by capitafising on our
leadership and dilferentiated positioning 1o increase bolh the size of the market
available to us and our share of that markel, regardless of the lrading conditions.
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Continued good growth in revenues and profit
Market share increased to 17%

Strong flow of new business wins, volume gains and retentions

Senvice levels further improved




BuUSINess Review

Mall

The improvements in our overall network
performance, together with increased locus
on mail customer service, has led to further
enhancements in our already industry leading

malil service levels.

UK Mail showed further good growth in both revenues and profit. As expected
and as previausly signalled, the rale of growth has moderaled from the very high
levels previpusly achieved, but the busingss enjoyed cenlinued success in
attracting significant new as well as retaining, and generating further mai! growth
from existing customers. As a result, volumes handled rose 33% to 2,322m and
revenues rose 19.8% to £164.5m. We now enjoy a markei share, by vetume of
mail coltected in the UK, of some 17%, compared to 11% a year ago.

UK Mail operating profits were up 16.0% to £11.6m, reflecting the good revenue
growth offsel by a slight decrease in the operating margin to 7.1% (2008: 7.3%).

Imporiantly, some 70% of our mait volume is based on delivering regular
staternents o statutory notifications and is therefore tess exposed to fluctuations
in levels of economic activity, However, Ihe voiume of other mare discretionary
mail, such as direct markeling malerial, has inevitably been impacted as a result
0i the economic Slowdown,

The improvements in our overall netwark performance. together with increased
focus en mail customer service, has led o further enhancements in our already
industry leading mail service levels.

We continue to see good growth prospects for our mail business. The primary
opporiunities lie through existing customers providing us with more of their mail
volumes, new customers being altracted 1o the services we currently offer, and
the development of new products and semvices that will funher increase the
proportion of 1he jcial UK mail market available to us.

We have recenily won three important new coniracts with leading finangial
Services organisations whg are ingreasingly atiracted to the efficiencies thal we
can offer. These contracis are in the process of being implemented and the
tesultant volumes will come on stream progressively during the first half of the
year.

To date, we have offerec business customers a two-day time-definite service,
meaning that the available market to us is some 33% of the tofal UK postal
market by velume, Recent and angoing product irnovation will open up new
areas of the market for us and will furiher reinforce owr position of market
leadership,

‘imail’, launched late last year, is a next day or two day mail service allowing
customers of any size to transmit electronically mail items to our network of mail

centres where il is printed, enveloped and sent for nexi day national delivery.
imail is developing a growing customer base and we conlinue to inloduce new
facilities to the service to further improve the benefits it offers.

Cur other preduct innovaticns - "Disguised Mail', which involves the concealing
of sensitive mail items as ordinary mail and ‘Returned Mail’, which provides
eflicient returned mail handling for our customers - continue to expand their
cuslomer base.

This and other planned product innovation will increasingly allow us to pravide
our customers with a wider range of mail solutions and efficiencies, whilst
significanily ditferentiating ourselves fiom our competition.

Following publication of the independenl Hooper Review of the UK postal
services sector, the resultant Postal Services Bill is currently progressing through
parliament. The Bill's proposals are designed to create a stronger and mars
efficient Royal Mail, an cuicome that we believe will be of significani benefit to
the UK mail indusiry as a whole.
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Operating profit and margin increased, driven by highlevels of efficiency -
margins at 9.5% for the year

Important major new contracts secured - B2B and BZC

Overall efficiency and service levels to cusiomers improved




BuUsIiNess Review

Parcels

We have reversed the structural and operational
weakness in the Parcels business and tumed
it INto a business delivering market leading

performance.

Revenues in Parcels, which comprises the Group's business-lo-business,
business-to-consumer and international parcel delivery service, were down 4,2%
for the year te £172.3m (2008: £179.8m}. Revenues showed gaod growth in the
first half, but were down in the second half reflecting the increasingly dilficult
economic enviconment. However, operating profit increased by 6.5% to £16.4m
with the operating margin increasing by 0.9% to 9.5% as our operations
continued to achieve high levels of efficiency, enabling us to reduce our
operaling cosls. The UK express parcels markel as a whole declined significantly
during the secand haif and we are iherefore confident that we have gained market
share, through a strong sales effort combined with a low cast network which
aliows us to win profitable business in compeditive lenders.

We continue to be successful in atiracting significant new corporate cuslomers,
including a large premium service B2C contract for a leading UK high street
retailer, and a major B2B conlract for one of the world's largest office supplies
companies. Al the same time, we see good growth apportunities in the Small &
Medium Enterprise markeiplace, 1o which our highly efficient and flexible
network and systems are well svited.

In support af our sirategic ohjective, to pragress furiher the customer orientation
of our parcels business, we have implemented a number of initiatives.

We have introduced a network of regional custemer care gentres that aim o
pravide customers with a single point of focus, covering booking collections,
checking the status of deliveries and general enquiries. We have recenlly
compleled a custamer survey which shows customer satisfaction levels at record
highs. We have also further improved our delivery performance such that over
98% of deliveries are made (o 1he agreed timescales.

We have a range o further initiafives planned which make it easier for cuslomers
1o do business with us and provide additional facilities to them,

At the start of the year we put in place plans to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of our Parcels operation, strengthening operalional management al
all levels, and introducing new mechanisms to plan and manage our operalions
{o achieve challenging targels. As the economic sitwalion worsened we acted
quickly to reduce our cost hase furiber, witha particular facus on our fixed costs.
These aclions included the closure of six sites, reducing the {olal to 52, a
seduction in our vehicle fleet of some 15%, and a significani number of staff
ieductions.

These changes, which incurred an exceplional cost of £0.8m, a major factor in
ihe overall exceptional cost of £1.1m have been successful in that we have
managed (o substantially reduce our cosl base whilst fursher improving service
lavels to customers.

We have aclions planned 1o reduce our cesl base still further. The main focus
will be io implement partial automation imto our network, which will yield
significant efficiency savings, and on which we currenlly plan to iavest some
£2.0m in the coming year.

References fo operating profilimargin throughou! this report are excluding
exceptional items.
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Business Review
Specialist

Strong growlth in revenues and profits
Development of nationwide integrated network
High service levels supporiing new contract wing

Altractive and flexible options




BUSINESS Review

Specialist

Both our Specialist Services businesses have
taken action to further reduce thelr cost base,
and this has been a major factor in the

increase In the operating margin.

Cverall revenues in Specialist Services, comprising cur nationwide palletised
goods delivery service (UK Pallets) and same-day courier aclivities (UK Mail —
Courier) increased by 17.8% o £48.9m (2008: £41.5m). Overall, Specialist
Sewvices operaling profits increased by 92.3% lo £2.5m {(2008: £1.3m).

Both our Specialist Services businesses have taken action to further reduce their
cost base, and this has been a major factor in the increase in ihe operaling
margin to 5.1% (2008: 3.1%).

Pallels

UK Pallets again performed well, with revenues up 1.3% for the year to £30.8m
and good profit growth driven by improvernents in the quality of the pallet
network, management and marketing initiatives.

Thig business, like our parcels business, showed good revenue growth, in the
first half but the second half performance was impacted by the econamic
environment with revenues down. This performance was nonatheless ahead of
1he markel, and this business is \herefore also gaining markel share,

The growih of this business is based on a strong member network of same 80
members who provide localised collection and delivery services together with
trunking to our central hub. This improved network has allewed us to increase
the scope and quality of the services provided by UK Pallets to its customers.

We have alsc invested in technology to improve the efficiency of cur operation
and the guality of information provided to members and our customers.

Courier
Qur Courier business provides a range of services which principally involve
same-tiay defivery of packages.

Revenues in gur Courier business increased significantly by §3.1% to £18.1m,
with profit also well ghead. This reflacts the successful implementation of our
stralegy to develop a nationwide network of couriers to allow us fo win and
effectively support national courier conlracts.

We have developed the business such thal we now have a nationwide network
supported by industry leading technology. We have developed a range of
services for customers. These include: fulfilment, whereby we hold stock
centrally for customers for national same-day delivery, ‘istore’, where we ho'ld
stock locally for custemers for local time sensitive delivery, mobile phone
delivery and ‘swapoul’, where we deliver mobile phone replacements 1o
customers to set defivery timescales with the facility to collect and retum the
replaced item,

Mare developments are planned to further increase the services we provide.

We commenced a number of new cantracts in the period, and we see further
onportunities to build on the advantages Ihat our network gives us, and on our
proven ability 1o support nationzl contracls with high service levels.

We see significant cpperiunities for his business to benefit from existing
customer relalionships elsewhere in the Group, particulaly in the telecoms and
financial services sectors.

References lo operaling profitimargin troughout this report are excluding
exceptionaf items.
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The Group has again reported good profit
growth, which combined with a coniinued
focus on cash management has resulted
in a strong balance sheet.

Financial overview

Despite the challengiag ecanomic ervirenment we experienced in the second half of the firancial year, the Group again reported good revenue and profit
growth. The Group conlinues to be highly cash generative, increasing cash balances o £18.0m at the vear end, at the same time as reducing total debt by £1.7m.

Performance measures

A number of performance measures are used to assess ihe development, underlying business performance and position of the Group and its divisions. These
are used colleclively, and periodically reviewed 1o ensure they remain appropriate and meaningful measures of the Group's performance.

Financial

» Revenue growlh

= Operating profit

* Operating profit margin

= Relum on average capilal empleyed
« Earnings per share (EPS)

= Free cash flow

= Debtor days

Each of these perforrmance measures are commenied upon within the lables contained in this review,

Furiher performance measures Jelale to the success and safety of aur people, and enviranmental periormance.
People

« Accident/incident rates (RIDDOR percentage)

+ Health and safely compliance

Environmental

= 150 14001 implementalion
= CO0: emissions
+  Waste recycling

We are currently developing our reporting systems and expect 4o report o these in future years.
Revenue
Revenue increased by 7.6% to £385.7m (2008: £358.6m).

2009 2008 Inc/(Dec)

£m £m %

Parcels 172.3 1798 {4.2%)
Mail 164.5 137.3 19.8%
Specialist Services 48.9 415 17.8%

fotal 385.7 358.6 7.6%




Parcels revenues have declined by 4.2% to £172.3m (2008: £179.8m). Revenues showed good growth of 2.6% in the first half, but were down some 10%
in the second half rellecting the increasingly difficult economic envirenment.

UK Mail revenue increased by 19.8% to £164.5m (2008: £137.3m;, reflecting both further cordract wins, and volume increases from existing custamers.
Specialist Services revenues increased by 17.8% to £48.9m {2008: £41.5m), reflecting a number of contracl wins in the period.

Profit before taxation

2009 2008 Inc/(Dec)

£m £m %

Parcels 16.4 154 6.5%
Mail 1.6 10.0 16.0%
Specialisl Sewvices 2.5 1.3 92.3%
Centrat Cosls {12.8) (12.2) (4.9%)
Qperating profit before exceptional items 17.7 145 22.1%
Exceptignal items . (1.1} - (100%)
Operating profit after exceptional items 16.5 14.5 14.5%
Interest (0.2) (0.3 33.3%
Profil before taxation T T 142 " 55%

Profit before tax increased by 15.5% to £16.4m (2008: £14.2m).

Operating profit (before exceptional items) increased by 22.1% 1o £17.7m {2008: £14.5m) mainly due 1o the continued streng profit growih of UK Mail, together
with improvements made within the Parcets operation.

Exceptional items
The Group reported tolal exceptional cosls of £3.0m {2008: £nit},
Qf this, £1.1m (2008 £nil} relates to the programme we instigated lo reduce our cost base in the light of the changed economic environment, This

programme involved a number of initiatives including reducing headcount and the closure of & sites, resuliing in redundancy cosls of £0.8m and preperty
related costs of £0.3m.

The exceplional 1ax charge of £1.9m comprises the wiile-off of a £2.2m (2008: Enil} delerred taxation balance resulting from the phase abolition of UK
Industrial Buitding Allewances {'IBAs’) following enactment of the Finance Act 2008, offset by £0.3m (2008: Enil} tax relief in respect of the exceptional
restructuring cost referred to above.

Net finance costs
Net finance costs decreased o £0.2m {2008: £0.3m), the resull of siriang cash generalion and ihe Group’s continued facus on cash management. Interest
cover is 83.0 times (2008: 48.3 times).

Return on average capital employed

2009 2008

£m £m

Tolal equity 54.9 54.0

Total debt 8.5 10.2

Capital employed 63.4 64.2

Average capital employed 63.8 64.8

Profit after tax 9.3 9.7
Return on average capital emptoyed 14.6% 15.0%

The fetum on average capital employed decreased slightly to 14.6% from 15.0%, mainly as a result of the one-off write-off of 2 £2.2m deferred taxation
balance in respect of UK Industrial Building Allowances following enactment of the 2008 Finance Act (see note 7). Excluding this effect, the retum on average
capilal employed increased from 15.% 10 18.0%.
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BUSINESS Review
Financial Overview

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share decreased 5% 10 17.1p from 18.0p las! year.

Adjusted earnings per share (befare exceptional items including the one-off deferred tax write-off ioowing the abolition of IBAs) increased 26.1% to 22.7p fiom
18.0p last year.

The average number of shares used in calculaling the basic earnings per share in the year was 54,049,420 compared to 54,068,346 |ast year.

Taxation

Thie tax charge fer 2009 was £7.1m {2008: £4.5m) which iefiects an effective rate ot 43.4% (2008: 31.7%). The charge inciwdes a £2.2m write-off of deterred tax
follawing the phased abolition of IBAs in the UK Finance Act 2008.

Adjusting for this ane-off non-cash item, the effective rate was 29.9% (2008: 31.7%).

Dividend

The Board proposes a Final Dividend of 10.8p (2008: 10.8p), resulting in an unchanged fota! dividend for the year of 17.2p {2008; 17.2p). The tolal dividend
for he year is covered 1.3 times (2008: 1.05 times) by adjusted earnings, and 1.0 times {2008: 1.05 times) by eamings. The Final Dividend will be paid on
14 August 2009 to shareholders registesed on 24 July 2009 with an ex-dividend date of 22 July 2009.

Cash flow

£m £m
Cash from operations 25.6 257
Tax paid (4.6} (3.9)
Capital expenditure (8.3} (5.6)
Interesl 0.2} {0.3)
Free cash llow 123 15.9
Dividends (9.3) (9.3)
Other mavements {1.6) (2.2}
Increase in cash __W T

The Group had a net cash inflow of £1.6m (2008: £4.4m) in the period, teading 0 a cash position at the end the year of £18.0m {2008: £16,4m). Cash inflow
{rem operating activities totalled £25.6m (2008: £25.7m), including £0.8m (2008: £4.0m) of cash released from working capilal. Capital expenditure for the
period was £8.3m (2008; £5.6m).

A vital companent of the cash release from working capilal is the improvement in deblor days. This iepresenis the length of time it takes for the Company fo
{eceive payments from its debtass.

2009 2008
£m £m

Deblor days 36.2 a10




The Group's continued focus on cash management resulted in a 4.8 day reduction in average debtor days ta 36.2 days (2008; 41.0 days).

2009 2008

fm fm

Tolal assets 123.2 125.3
Total liabilities (68.3) (71.3)
Net assets 54.9 54.0
Net cash 9.5 6.2

Net assets
Net assels increased by £0.9m to £54.9m.

Net cash

At March 2008 the Group feld net cash of £9.5m (2008: £6.2m}), resulting from continued improvements in working capital management and reduction in
both finance lease and toan borrowings.

The Group remained ungearad al both 31 March 2009, and 31 March 2008.

Treasury risk management

The treasury function of tha Group operates within palicies and procedures approved by the Board. These procedures cover funding, banking relationships, foreign
curency, interes! rale exposures and cash management,

The Group has considered carefully its cash flows and banking covenants for the nexs three vears. These have been appraised in lighl of the cument economic
climate and on a number of forecast scenarios. As such, conservative assumptions on profiiability and working capilal performance have been used to determine
the level of financial resources required by the Group and fo assess liquidity risk,

The Group continually assesses its actua! and forecas! cash position on a weekly basis. This ensures that in the shart term the Group's cash is used optimally.
Each month a medium lerm review of the forecast is undertaken to ensure full compliance wilh the banking covenants.

The Group's sirong lavels of aperating cash flow and low indebledness mean that it is not sigrificantly exposed 1o liquidity risk,

The Group is not significantly exposed to the effects of fluctuations in exchange rates sinca all income is in sterling and costs denominzted in foreign cumency,
principally the euro, represent less than 1% of all expenditure.

The Group's expesure 1o any sigrificant interest risk is minimal due to ihe relatively Jow level of debi.

Primary risks and uncertainties facing the business

The Group has an established risk management monitoring ang review process as described in the Corporate Governance Repart on pages 18 1 21. The process
fequires management of the business 1o identify, evatuate and monitor risks and takes steps to reduce, eliminate or manage those risks. The risk management
plan is reviewed by the Board.

The primary risks and uncertainties faging the business which could have a malerial adverse impact on the Group are detailed in note 5.

Accounting policies and crilical accounting judgements

The Group accounls are prepared using accounting policies in accordance with IFRS as adopied by the EU. The principal accounting policies are sei out in nole
1 1o these financial stalements.

The preparation of these accounis requires the usg of estimales, judgements and assumptlions that affect the reporied amounts of assels, liabilities, revenue and
expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and lisbilities. Directors™ estimales are based on historical experience, consultalion with experts and aiher
methods thal they believe are reasonable and appropriate.

The critical accounting judgements in applying these policies are detailed in note 34,

Guy Buswe even Gle

Chief Executive FinanceDirector
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Directors & Advisers

Peter Kane (62} Chairman

Founded the Company and, with Michael Kane, his
brother, was responsible for its development urtit
Decoming a non-execulive director in 1996 After
a pesiod as Chief Exgcutive fom August 1998, he
resumed his non-exscutive role on 1 April 2001,
and was appointed Chairman on 10 Juty 2001,

Bill Cockburn CBE, TD (66) Deputy Chairman

Was Chief Exgcutive of The Post Office from 1992 to 1995,
Chief Executive of WH Smith from 1995 o0 1997 and Group
Managing Oirector of BT fram 1397 ta 2001. He was appaint-
ed as a non-executive director on 1 April 2002,

Trevar Jenkins (49} Non-Executive Director

The newest member of the Boar, having been appointed
on 1 September 2008. Trever is Chief Financial Officer of
Reed Business Information, a division of Reed Elsevier
Group Plc and has previously held senior financial roles
at Pearson Ple and Mars Inc.

Steven Glew (52} Group Finance Direclor

Was appointed as Group Finance Director and joined the
Board on 5 June 2006. He has held senior financial
positions in Tesco Stores pic. He was afse Group Finance
Ditector ol: Crown Sports ple, Booker plc and
Mathercare plc.

Michael Kane (59) Non-Executive Director

Joined Business Post in 1974, became Managing
Ditector in 1984, Chief Executive in Novemnber 1995 and
non-gxecutive director in March 1997. Acted as Chief
Operating Offices fom July 2000 uniil resuming his non-
executive role on 1 April 2001,

Guy Buswell {(47) Chief Executive

Joined Bysiness Postin 1989 and was appointed
Sales Director in 1992. Aftes a period elsewhere
in the industry he rejoined the Company in 1997
and was appoinied o the Board on 12 August
1938. Bacame Managing Director of UK Mail from
1 July 2002, and Chief Executive of the Group
fram § Decembzer 2005.

Alec Ross (53) Group Operations Direclar

Joined the Compary in Jung 1997 with 20 yeurs
experience in systems development in irgasport and
logistics and was appointed to the Board as [T Director on
15 Seplember 1998. He became Group Semwvices
Director on 5 December 2005 and Group Operations
Director 0n 20 January 2007.

Philip Stephens (66) Non-Executive Director

Was appoirded a non-executive diector on 1 Apfl 2004. He
is non-exgcutive Chairman of Egdon Resources and
MNeplune-Calculus Income & Growth VGT, and a non-execu-
tive direcior of Foresight 4 VCT. Until his retiremers in 2002,
he had been involvedt in corparate finance and broking for
more than 35 years.




Stockbrokers and Financial Advisers
Financial PR
Auditors

Solicitors

Bankers

Registrars

Registered Office

investec Investment Banking 2 Gresham Street London EC2V 7QP

Hogarth Partnership No 1 London Bridge Londen SE1 9BG
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Atrium 1 Harefield Road Uxbridge UB8 1EX
Travers Smith LLP 10 Snow Hill London EC1A 2AL

Martineau Johnson LLP No 1 Colmore Square Birmingham B4 6AA

Lioyds TSB 125 Colmore Row Birmingham B3 3SF

Barclays 1 Churchill Place Canary Wharf London E14 SHP

Equiniti Aspect House Spencer Park Lancing West Sussex BN99 6DA

Express House 464 Berkshire Avenue Slough SL1 4PL
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Corporate Governance

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority require listad companies 1o disclose how they comply wilh the principles of good governance and the code of best
practice known as the Combinzd Code. The Code was originally adopted in 1998 and was revised during 2003 and agzin in 2006. This stalement, which
incorporates the stalement on carporale sacial respansibility, explains how the Company has applied the principfes of good governance set out in ihe Code.

The Board

During the year Business Post maintained a balance of executive and non-executive directors, bringing a wide range of skills and experience lo the Board. Biographical
details of the current directors are sel out in the Directors and Advisers slatement. Of the six non-execulive direclors thal seved en the Beard during the year, Philip
Stephens and Trevor Jenkins are judoed 1o be independent according 1o the guidelines set cut in the Combined Code.

The Combingd Code siates thal the Board should determine whether a director s independent in character and judgement and wheher there are relationships or
circumstances, which are likely tc affect or could appear to affect, the director's judgement, for example serving on a board for mare than nine years, or has had a
malerial busingss selationship within the tast (hree years.

Dennis Clark had been appointed 10 the Board as non-executive director en 1 Octeber 1998, and later also appoinied as senior independent director. Therefore he
had, as from 1 October 2007, served on the Board for more than nine years. The Board evaluated Dennis Clark's characler and judgement and found it was cansis-
tent throughout and had satisfied themselves that Dennis Clark remained independent. Dennis Clark retired from the Board in July 2008. Michael and Peter Kane are
not judged to te independent due to their significant shareholdings. Bill Cockburn previously had a consultancy agreement which incfuded incentives in relation to
the performance of UK Mail. These incentives vested in May 2008, with payment of his entitlement shortly thereafier. 8ill's role since that time has been solely as a
non-executive director. The Board has evaluated Bill Cockburn's characier and judgement, and his perlormance since that date, and have satisfied themselves that
Bill Cockbumn acts as an independent director. The other two non-exgeutive directors are cansidered by the Board lo be independent in character and judgement and
having no relationships which are likely 1o affect, or could appear to atfect, the directors’ judgement. All the non-executive diteclors make a significant contribution
to the functioning of the Board and its commiitees, and no one individual or group dominates the Board's decision-making piocess.

Philip Stephens retires from the Board in Juty 2009 and will not put himself forward for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The process te recruil
@ SUCCESSON isin pragress using the services of specialist recruitment consultants, under the guidance of the Nomination Committee.

Al directors are required by the Company’s Articles of Association to submit themselves for re-election at least every thiee years or, in ihe case of any person
appointed by the directors as a director during the last year, such director s required to submit Ihemselves for re-glection al the next Annual General Meeting. The
names of those direclors standing for election/re-election 1o the Board this year are se1 out in the Netice of the forthcoming Annual General Megting. There are iwo
non-execulive direclors ard one executive director standing for re-election at the Annual General Meeting and the Board strangly supports sheir re-glection for the
reasons set out in the Directors’ Repor.

The Company’s policy is that executive direclars may 1zke no mare than one non-executive direciorship of another company, and any such involvernent mus! be sub-
ject to the Board's priar approval. No executive director currently has any such agpoiniments.

The Board's focus is on strategy formulation, policy and conirol. There s a formal schedule of matiers reserved for decision by ihe Board which retains all major oper-
ationat and risk management decisinns with the Board. These include the approval of major items of expendilure or commilment, including acquisitions: major oper-
alional projects, including new conivacl wins; financing, including lease/buy decisions and the use of derivalives and insurance; and changes in policy relating 1o the
franchise network. The Board routinely manitors the various financial, operational and commercia? risks facing the Company through reports from managerment,

The Chairman is primarily responsible for the working of the Board, and the Chief Executive for the running of the business and implementation of Board strategy and
policy. There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive and this has been agreed by the Baard. The Board meets formally
at least ten times a year, with other meeliags as necessary. The Board receives reports in advance of each meeting from the Chief Execulive and Finance Director
addressing the {inancial performance ol the Company ang developments since the previous meeting, wiih further reporis on parlicular issues as appropriate. Reparts
are also supplied e directors in monlhs when a Board meeting does not take place. All direciors have access 1o the advice and services af the Company Secretary,
and these is a procedure whereby directors. wishing to da so in the furtherance of their duties, may lake independent professional advice at the Company's expense.

The Board has a number of commitiees, the principal ones being the Audit, Remuneratien and Nomination commitiges. Membership of these cammittees as a1 April
2009 and their principat terms of reference are set out in the next page.
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Corporate Governance

Business Post Group plc
Board of directors

Audit Commitiee
Trevor Jenkins {Chairman},
Bili Cockburn, Philip Siephens

Assists the Board in fullilling its respansibilities
in respect of:

overseeing the Group's financizl stalements,
menilering the adequacy of intemal conlrals
and risk management processes,
the seleclion, compensalion, independence and
performance of the Group's exteral auditors,

Nemination Committee

Peter Xane (Chairman), Bill Cockburn,
Trevar Jenkins, Philip Stephens

Leads the process for, and recommends to the

Remuneration Committee

Philip Stephens {Chairman},
Bill Cockburn, Trevor Jenkins

Sets remuneration for all execulive directors,
including share-based incentives, pansions
and other benefils.

Manitors 1he (evel and siructure of
remuneration for the first layer of management

below Board level.

Approves initial grants and subsequen! exercise

Baoard all appaints to the Board.
i of all share-based incentives.
the independence and performance of e Reviews succession planning for the Board.

Group's internal auditor,

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2009, Peter Kane was a member of the Remuneration and Audit Committees and Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee, esulting in non-
compliance with the Combined Code's povisions A 4.1, B.2.1 and C.3.1 that membership of the Remuneration and Audit Committees should comprise entirely independent direclors
and that the Nomination Commitee should comprise a majority of independent directors. However, with aver 30 years of in-depih experience of the business, and as a significant
sharehalder, the Board believes that his membership of shese committees is appropriate anc that he brings invaluable knowledge and expesience lo their operation.

To improve compliance with the Combined Code it has been agreed by the Board that, with efiect from April 2009, Peter Kane will no longer be 2 member of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees.

The foliawing table shows the attendance of directors at regular Board meetings and at meetings of the Audil, Remunerztion and Nomination Committees during the year.

Board Audit Remuneration Nominalion
Number held 11 3 3 2
Guy Buswel " 3 2«
Dennis Clark (retirgg 3% July 2008) 5 1 2
Bill Cockbum 1 3 3" 2
Steven Glew 1 3
Trevor Jenkins (appointed 1 Sep 2008) 6 2 1 1
Michael Kang Al 2" 1*
Peter Kane " 3 2 2
Alec Ross "
Philip Stephens 1 3 3 2

- Altendance by directors wha are not members of the committee was at the reques! of the Chairman of the commitlee.

The Nomination Commitiee met twice dwing the year ta approve the appointment of Trevor Jenkins o the Board and 1o consider the appoiniment of a noa-executive direcior
{o replace Philip Stephens. For appointments o the Board 1he commitiee play a key role; agreeing the principal job description, appointing independent recruitment
consultants, and interviewing the preferred candidates.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the directors have again reviewed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its commitlees. The individual directors initially completed separate
guestionnaires, and Ihe results were compiled and analyse¢ by the Company Secretary, who prepared a summary report for the Board. The areas covered included
Board and commitiee composition, dynamics and accountability; preparation for and performance at megtings; and induction and professional development.

In addition to reqular Beard meetings, the Chairman regularly convenes meelings of the non-executive directors te assess the performance of the Board in the absence
af the executive dirsctors. The performance of the Chairman was considered as part of the questionnaires completed by the directors and discussed separately by the
nen-executive direclors withoui the Chairman present. The Board and its committees are satisfied that they are operating effectively.

Directors’ remuneration

The Boarg considers 1hai the Company compties with the main principles of the Combined Code in relation to remuneration, by having a formal and transparent
procedure for developing palicy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of ditectors. Mo director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. A significant praportian of remuneration is strzctured so as 1o link rewards to corporate and individual performance. The Board believes thal levels of
semuneration are sullicient lo attract, retain and motivate directers of the quality required to run the Company successiully, bul without paying more than is necessary.
Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Remuneration Repart.

Relations with shareholders

Whilst there is a substantial shareholding represented on lhe Board, the Company values its dialogue with both institutional and private investors. Two-way
communication with instilutional investors, analysts and private investors is actively pursued, and a series of presentations and metings are held throughout the year,
carelully recegnising statutary conskaints ¢oncerning the disclosure of information. Feedback from these meetings is collated by the Company's advisers and
circulated 1o members of ihe Beard to ensure that they are kept informed concerning the views of shareholders. Inaddition, the Chairman periadically attends meetings
with shareholders, and non-gxecutive directors arg invited 10 attend results presentations.

This year's Annual General Megting will be held on 15 Juty 2009 at which time the chairmen of the Audil, Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees will be avalable
to answer shareholder questions. The Company will continue its practice of proposing Individual resolulions, including separate resalutions relating to the Directors'
Report and Accounts and the Remuneration Report, and of reporting the proxy voling in rspect of each resolution,

Accountabillty and directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual repord, the girectors’ remuneration repor! and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
reguiations.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial siztements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the stale of affairs of ihe Company and the
Group and of the profit or loss of the Group lor that period.

In pregaring those financial statemens the directars are required to:

»  sglect suitable accounting policies and Lhen apply them consistently;

*  make judgemenis and estimates that are reasonable ang prudent;

» staje thal the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by ihe Eurapean Union;

= piepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inapprapriate lo presume that the Group will continue in business in which case there
should be supporting assumptions or gualifications as necessary.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the abgve requiremenis in preparing the financial sfatements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose wilh reasonable accuracy at any lime ihe financial position of the Company and the
Group and to enad!e them to ensure thal the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible {or safegua:ding the assets of he
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonate steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreqularities.




Corporate Governance

The directars are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group website www.businesspost.biz. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may ditfer from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Internal controls

The Board of directers has overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a system of inlernal control to provide i with reasonable assurance regarding
effective and eflicient operations, internal financial conirol an¢ compliance with laws and regulations. There are inhetent limilations in any system of internal control
and, accordingly, even the most effective system can provide onfy reasonable, and not absolule, assurance.

The Turnbull cepori issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in Seplember 1999 provided {urther guidance as to how the Combined
Code principles on internal controt should be applied in practice.

The Board consigers that the Company has complied with the Turnbul! report throughout the year. There is a tormal ongoing process far identifying, managing and
reviewing any changes in the risks faced by the Company. This pracess operates under the direction of, and is regularly reviewed by, the Board thal is satistied with
the level of effecliveness of the internal control system.

The key features of the interal contral syslem within the Group are:

+ clearly defined delegation of responsitilities, including relevant authorisation levels;

» clearly documented internal procedures set out in operational and administration manuals;

« reqular compliance audil visits to all owned and franchised locations which manitor compliance with procedures and assess the integrity of financial information;
+ review gt financial procedures by the internal auditor;

+ close involvement of executive direclors in manitoring and managing ihe main risk areas of the business;

* reqular information provided 1¢ senior management, covering financial performance and key business indicators; and

*  monthly monitoring of results against budget and forecast, with major variances being lollowed up and management aclion taken where necessary.

Details of the Group’s activities in relation to its envionmental, employmeni and healih and safety responsibilities are sat outin the Carporate Social Responsibility
slatement.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness ol the internal control systems during the pericd covered by the accounts 2nd up 10 the date of the approval of the accounts.
This review covered all controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls ang risk management.

Compfiance with the Combined Code
Save for the compaosition of its committees, where the Code requires a greater proportion of members to be non-executive directors judged to be independent, or as
otherwise dascribed in this report, the Board considers that 1he Company has complied with the pravisions ¢f Section 1 of the Combined Code 2006.
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Audit Committee Report

This report meels the requirements of the Combined Code 2006 issued by the UK Financial Services Authority.
Role and responsibllities
The main role and responsibilities of the Commitiee are set out in wrilten terms of reference. These responsibilities include:

»  Monitaring the integrity of the half year and annual financial statements, by considering reparts from the Finance Direclor and the external auditors setting out
the basis of preparation of the results and the principal reporting judgements therein;

+  Reviewing the critical accounting policies and compliance with applicable accounting standards, by considering repoits from the Finance Director and external
auditors;

»  Reviewing the Campany's internal financiat cantrols and internal contral and risk management systems, by coasidering reports frem both the internat and external
auditors during ihe year and reports on the elfecliveness of internal controls and risk management systems frcm the Finance Director and Director of Risk;

«  Monitoring the scope and effectiveness of the internal auditor, by considering work plans, reports throughout the year and atlendance at Audit Committee
meelings;

= Overseeing the process for the appointment, terms of engagement, compensation and independence of the exlernat auditors by considering praposats frem the
Finance Dirgctor on each of these;

»  Menitoring the effectiveness of the external audilors, by considering the quality of peaple ano service, the robustness of he audit and the quality of delivery;
+  Reviewing the Company’s policy for the engagement of the external audilors fo supply non-audit services; ang

= Moniloring the Company's whistle blawing procedures, by considesing reports from management of the incidents recorded and the action 1aken 1o investipate
and resolve them.

A copy of the terms of reference of the Committes i$ available on the Business Post websile www.businesspostbizfinvestor_terms himl
Committee membership

The members of the Audil Committee ("the Committee”) during the year were: Dennis Clark (Chairman) until 30 July 2008, Trevor Jenkins (Chairman) from
1 Seplember 2008, Philip Stephens and Peler Kane.

The Commitlee meetings are lypically attended by the Chief Execulive, lhe Finance Director, Group Financial Coniroller, Hea? of Internal Audit and senior
representalives of the externat auditars. At least once a year the Committee meet separately with the external auditors without management present, and also with the
Head of internal Audit,

The constitution and operation of the Commitiee during the year has complied with the Combined Code except thal the Company's non-execylive Chairman is noi
considered fo be independent. His experience within both the Company and the industry for over 30 years is, hawever, considered to be invatuable to the Committee,
particutarly during the iransition of Committee Chairman. The Board has agreed 1hal, with effect from April 2009, Peter Kane will no longer be a member of lhe
Commilige,

The Committee was chaired during the year by Dennis Clark and then Trevor Jenkins, both of whom are qualified accauntants, and are considered o have recent and
relevant financial experience.
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Audit Committee Report

Commitlee activities

The Commitiee met three limes during ihe year, and reports of these meelings were provided to the subsequent Board meetings.

The principal activities of these meetings included:

*  Review and approval of the internal audit pizn and maniloring its execution;

+  Review and discussion of regular reports from internal audit covering the findings from internal audit reviews and the actions agreed with management;

+  Review and discussion of interim and full year reports from externat audil covering the findings from their review of internal control systems and financial
slaiements;

+  Review of reports from the Finance Directar concerning the effectiveness of the systems of internat control and action plans to further improve the control
environment;

*  Review and approval of financial statements, resulls announcemenis and related formal statements;

+ Review of critical accounting policies and practices, and significant accounting reporting issues and judgements made in connection with the interim and year-
end financial statements;

«  Review of risk management activities, including consideration of any material liigation;
+  Review of whistle blowing procedures and reported incidents;

= Review of external auditors independence. their scope and effeciiveness; and

+  Meeting with intermal audit and external audil withgui management present.

External audit independence

The Cammitiee has satisfied itsell with the independence of ihe external auditors from management. The exiernal auditar's fees for audit services have bean reviewed
and approved by the Commitiee.

The Committee has reviewed and agreed the non-audit servicas provided by the external auditors, logether with the associated fees.

Trevor Jenkins
Audit Committes Chairman
20 May 2009
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate social responsibility

We are commitied to Corporale and Social Responsibility ("CSR™) and regard the
integration of soungd CSR practices (which take info account the interests of all our
stakeholders be they employees, customers, shareholders or the wider community) as
a long-term, sustainatile approach 1o business and we continue to devole significant
resources lowards improving CSR standards and praclices within the Group.

Steven Glew is the Board member responsible for CSR with our CSR strategy being
approved ai Board level. He, fogether with the CSR Steering Commitiee actively
manage, develop and cormmunicale our CSR stralegy, with this strategy providing
dirgclion and guidance on ali aspects of business practice and respansibitity. The
members of the CSR Steering Committee are drawn from a number of disciplines
acoss he Company (human resources, health and saléty, operations, iranspor,
procurement, communications and legal).

To further develop and give: direction 1o our CSR strategy, as well as %0 show our
cantinwing commitment 1o CSR, we became a signatory fo the United Nations Global
Compact in 2008. As such we have committed fo laking action and uphoiding each of
the principles il describes in relation to business integrity, employment, human rights
and the environment,

Environmentat

The Group recognises that it has a respansibility 1o reduce its impact on the
environment and seeks ta increase tha environmental sustainability of its operalions
and those of its customers. Whilst we recognise that we have an important role to play
in delivering goods and mail in the UK, we are acutely aware of the impact that transport
operations have on the environment and the Group is commitied o reducing his
impact by the infroduction of cost effective sofutions and changes which result in real
benefits to the environment as a whole.

Cur key long term iniliatives are to reduce cur CO2 emissions by reducing our energy
and fue! consumption and lo reduce the waste we send for disposal, Whilst we are in
the early stages of developing a fully camprehensive emironmental stralegy, we have
made some notable advances in Ihe above initiatives dwing the last year.

We have now established mechanisms to identify and report on a monthly basis the
C: emissions that our business creates. We have also set largets lo reduce these
outputs and put in place specific initiztives, with specific goals, to achieve hese
eeguclions. These initialives selate principally to fue! and energy usage in our business.

Fugl usage
With respect to fuel usage we have (hree key objectives:

Qbjective 1: lo reduce the distance travelled by owr vehicle fieet through effective route
planning and oplimisation of vehicle fill.

The use of mute planning software enables the Company lo reduce fuel usage by
aptimising joumey miles. Changes lo routes and optimisation of vehicle fiil introduced
in the year have resutted in a reduction in COz emissions of 134 fonnes for the year.
We ase trialling ways in which te more efiectively use the space within our trucks to see
whether lhere may be a reduction in the number of vehicles used.

Objective 2: o reduce the fuel consumption of our vehicles thiough a review of the
design of vehicles used and ather effective means.

All our double decker trailers have sloping fronts, designed in conjunction with the
Group's frailer supplies, Don-Bur Bodies and Trailers, which dramatically reduces ihe
fuet consumption of the lowing vehicle, thus reducing CO» emissions by up 1o 25
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tonngs per vehicle per vear. The design is easily applied to existing fleet trailers as
niearly all components from the original design are re-used. With 69 of these trailers
cumently in $he fleet, the saving in fuel and COx is significant. Based on cumend route
mileages the reduction in CCa emissions is around 1,699 fonnes per annum. The wark
on this design has aiready resuited in two awards, from Green Fleet and EAST. We are
s00n 1o trial a new aerocynamic trailer design which, il successful, will further reduce
the CO02 emissions from our vehicles,

All powered vehicles have bespoke aerodynamic air kils, designed by Eco-Tek, which
have resulled in mpg improvements of between 5%-10%. These vehicles are on a six
year replacement cycle with manufacturers that boasl a 95% recyclable component.
They are also maintaingd by manufaciurer main dealers fo ensure only quality
components and ils are used for peak performance. Vehicles and trailers are specified
to run on toad-frigndly air suspension, reducing wear af components, damage to the
road network and noise pollution. All traiters incorporate LED lighting as appesed 1o
bulbs which removes a waste disposal problem. Wherever possible, vehicle and lraiter
badies in build are paint free using self coloured panels and natural aluminium
frarework. All heavy goods veficles are now specified with automated transmissions,
which optimise fuel econgmy and also reduces driver fatique.

Tyres are also audited on a regular basis loensura repair agents maintain tyre pressures,
which if not cormect, can have a detrimentat effect on 1he fife of the tyre but also the
vehicle's fuel consumption, which in tum has an effect en the CO2 emissions of that
vehicle, We will also be conducling a Wil using “energy” tyres which provide
approximately 6% less rolling resistance and should lead in a eduction in the vehicle's
fuel consumption.

During the year, we have continued 10 moniter the mpg per vehicle and wiil continue
lodo 50 in the current year. Hl is hoped tha the full effect of the above Initiatives will be
recorded in such monitering and that a clear and effective strategy which manages fuel
consumption can consequenily be formulated.

We have continued to replace diesel run counterbalance forklift trucks with electric
forkfift trucks and there have also been improvements to the company car fleet
follgwing the mave to a new fleet management company. All new company ¢ars have
COz emissions below 160g/km and drivers are encouraged to make fewer business
joumeys by replacing them with conference calls and video conferencing.

Cbiective 3: fo continue using big-clieset and to investigate altematives,

All our vehicles utilise big-diesed which reduces the €0z emissions fram our vehicles
by 3% and we aim {o continue the use of bio-diese! at current levels. We continue fo
investigate {such investigations taking account of the overali erwironmeniat impaci of
Ihe use of such products) oiher cpportunities 10 reduce the carbon emission from the
fue! we use, such as altemative fuel and fuel optimisation products (eg. the use of
additives in fuel).

Energy usage and waste disposal

With respec! to energy wsage, we have been working with the Carbon Trust to Identify
actions that we can take. For e@mple, we have deployed mation sensors to contol
lighting, installed simple lime controls on office equipment, replaced wasteful
traditional lighling with LED and low energy alternatives.

We have also been working hard to increase the tevel of our recycling and in December
2008 appeinled a new wasle management company. The increased focus on recycling
has led to a 55% increase in the amount of waste which we now recycle and we have
a farget o achieve 80% by the end of the year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

We have also during the past year, faunched an internal campaign 10 raise awareness
amongst our employees of the emvironmental impact of their actions. This has seen
employees naw consgiously switching off lights, powering off machines and using on-
site recycling facilities. Management al local sites have also been empawered to
introduce practices which will encourage a reduction in on-sile energy usage and
wasle, and an increase in recycling, This activily has been encouraged by the
introduction of an intra-site “eco-challenge 2069" competition which rewards the site
showing the greatest reduction in energy consumpiion and increased use of recycling
{acilities.

We have a plan in place 1o achieve ISO 14001 accreditation for all of our sites. We
have engaged specialist external advisors 16 guide s through this process. Qur aim
is that five key sites will have achieved accreditalion in 2009 with all sites achieving
accreditation the fallowing year,

We have adopted a strict code of conduct wilh our suppliers which defines our
minimum standards of business activity and shapes the way we work with our suppliers
for mutual gain.

Product inngvation

We are also driving produc! innovations which reduce the environmental impact of our
operation. In October 2008, we launched “imail”. imait is a next day or two day mail
delivery service which allows customers of any size to electronically transmit mail
items to qur national network of sort centras, The mail item is printed and envelaped
in the sort centre closest 1o the delivery address ard then transterred 1o Royal Mail for
final delivery. This product offering reduces the carben footprint of a lefler by some
80% by reducing the transpod requirements that have previously been a necessary part
of aperating a national delivery solution.

Health and safsty

The Group fully emiwaces and endorses the legal and moral obligation to protect the
health, safety and welfare of emplovees and athers who may be affecled by our
operations. Robust policies have been developed and deployed 1o ensure training, risk
assessment, sale systems of work and accident investigation procedures are camied
out throughoun 1he network. Policies are also updated on an ongoing basis to ensure
they reflect the changing envirsnment in which we operate, an example of this being
the Company Driving Policy and a requirement that driving risk assessments are
completed on an annual basis. Health and Safety is discussed at Group Board
megtings ulitising the monthly Health and Safety report, which outlines proactive and
reactive measures for discussion and gebate. A full Health, Safety and Erwiranment
auditis carmied out each year al 3!l operating locations. A Health and Safety intranet site
rontzins readily available information for managers on specific procedures and
policies such as emergency respanse, safe systems, risk assessments, accident
investigations, limited quantities of dangerous goods allowed and communications o
promole health and safety and ta prevenl accidents from occurring in the work place.

Employment

The Group was successful in achieving lnvestors in People reaccreditation and has
continued 1o make significant progress in Human Resource management over the last
y&ar in {s aim to become an ‘Emplayer of Choice’. The Employee Consulative Group
has been strengthened to provide a robust platform lor all employees to make a
significant contribtion to bringing aboul change in the workplace and to provide a
forum for the exchange of information, apinions and feedback. Our reward schemes
have also been reviewed resulting in improved incentives and compelilive benelits and
the introduction of a performance based bonus scheme. A number of voluntary benefits

have also been intioduced resulting in @ wider choice Tor employees. Employee
{urnover has ¢entinued 1o all, having now reduced every year for the last 5 years. The
Group continues to coach and train managers in a wide variety of skill areas inctuding,
performance management, communication skills, leadership, emptovment law and
supensory skills and has confinued 10 provide opesational (rining courses for front
line staff such as manual handling, customer care, health and safety and IT skills. The
“Best Welcome” inductlion programme has also continued {o be rolled out to new
employees, providing an overview of the business, key operational matters and those
matters which we valug most {such as honesty, responsibility and a can-do attitude),

The Group conlinues 1o offer Childeare Voucher Schemes and will shorily be
introducing the ‘Ride a Bike to Work Scheme’. NVQ Training has alse been
implernented resulting in a number of employees gaining a natienally recognised
gualification. To support our stafl welfare programme, the Group pravides, through 2
third party, a 24 hour confidential hedp ling that provides counselling and advice on a
wide range of subjects. Further welfare inilialives have been put in place with the
introduction of an Attendance Management Pelicy. The Group continues to ensure all
the requirernents of current and future employment and health and salety legislation are
met and managers are kept up to date with changes in legisfation through quarterly
Seminars.

Business Post in the community
We firrnly believe in comemunity investment and encourage “community mindedness”
acrass the Company.

We recently signed a national agreement with Job Cenlre Plus gursuant fo which we
have committed fo work with them {0 help potential recruits move from welfare 1o
sustained employment. We delieve this will help the local communities in which we
aperale.

Charitable support

Cancer Researth UK is the chosen chaily partner for Business Post Group, its
employees and its franchisees. The Group donates 1p to Cancer Research UK for every
parcel consignment carried for customers who pay their accounts by direct debit and,
in the last year, this raised £80,245.

Business Post staff across the whola company also rose o the challenge during the
last year and raised over £11,291 for Cancer Research UK with a wide variety of events,
inciuding sponscred walks, raffles, charity auctions, cycle rides and paracheting.

The Group also operates a ‘payroll giving scheme’ allowing all emplayees the
apportunity to conlribute o heir preferred charity through tax efficient salary
deductions.

CSR achievements in the past year

Introduction of the franspartation initiatives referred to above and improved network
planning has lead 1o a reduction of 756069 km driven, equating to 8 CO: saving
of 134 ionnes

Introduction of imail

« Anincraase in recycling by 55% and use of paper which is 80% recycled

Introduction of a Supplier Code of Conduct
= Achieved Investors tn People re-accredifation

Eighty night workers obtained NvQ's
£91,536 raised for Cancer Research UK
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report is unaudited

The members of ihe Remuneration Commitiee (ihe “Commillee”) during the year were: Philip Stephens (Chairman), Dennis Clatk, Trevor Jenkins and Peler Kane. During
ihe year and at the request of the Committee, the Group’s Chief Executive, Guy Buswe!l, and Deputy Chairman, Bili Cockbum, gave advice and assistance ta 1he Commitiee.

In addition, the Committee sought advice, principally in refation to the design of the new Leng Term Incentive Plan, from external iemuneration consulianis, Rewitt New
Bridge Street.

The canstitution ang operation of the Committee during the year has complied with the Combined Code’s guidance on Directors remuneration except thal the Company's
non-executive Chairman is not considered to be independent. His experience within bolh the Company and the industry for over 30 years is, however, cansidered to be
invatuable {0 the Gommittee. It has been agreed that Peter Kane will no tonger be @ member of the Committee from April 2009.

Remuneration pollcy
The remuneration policy of the Group, in particular the poticy for setting remuneration for executive directors and other senior executives, is determined by the

Cammitlee of the Board. The terms of relerence of the Commitiee are available on the Group's websile.
The remuneration palicy for non-executive directors ineluding the Chairman is determined by ihe Board.

The Commiliee's remuneration policy is to pravide compelitive remuneration arrangements for executive directors and senior executives which are commensurate
with those of ather companies of a similar nalure, size and standing and which reflect the Group’s business and financial abjeclives and which ase consislen! with the
goals of Corporate Governance, Remuneration arrangemenls are addressed within the context of the Grawp's current perfermance, ifs progress fowards sirategic
objectives and individual executives’ personal performance.

Efements of the remuneration package of executive directors
Remuneration of executive direciors comprises the following elements:

Base salaries

Base salaries are seviewed annually. In considering appropriate salary levels the Committee 1akes into acceunt ihe remungration paid by comparable companies in
terms of marke! capitalisalion, revenues and profils. The Company's practice is to target basic salaries by reference to the mid-market ievel in the appropriate market
for ihe executive position. In determining executive salaries consideralion is also given 1o their experience and general performance level.

In Aprit 2009 a 2% inflation in¢rease was awarded 1o executive directors and senior executives, in line with the genersal increase given to our employees.

Annual bonuses

The Group operates an annual ¢cash bonus scheme for execulive directors. The level of bonus payment is dependent upon Ihe Gioup's performance evaluated agains
Group budgeted pre-tax profit set oul at the beginning o the year. The maximum payment paiential {or the forthcomiag financial year wilt remain unchanged at 100%
of annual salary. Potential bonus payments far achiaving “on target’ performance have been reduced in the forthcoming financial year, in line with reductions in bonus
target payouts for all our employees.

Benelits

Heallh and sickness insurance schemes are provided for executive direclors and include privale health cover, permanent health insurance and death in service benefits.
Executive directors receive either a ear, or an annual car aflowance and contributions of between 12.5% and 15% of each individua! director’s base salary into a defined
contribution pension scheme.

Share-hased incentive schemes

On an on-going basis, the Group currently utilises a Long Term Incentive Plan and 2 Share Matching Plan ta pravide longer term share-based incentives for executive
ditectors. The schemes are designed 1o motivate and reward achigvement of a combination of challenging corporate financial 1asgets and enhancemeni of sharehalder
value. Specilic details of the schemes are outlined on the following page. In addition, ong-off awards were granted in 2006 {following shareholder approval at the

AGM) lo the Chisf Execulive and Finance Director - full details of these awards are aullined lates in this report.
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report is unaudited

Long term incentive plan

The Group's existing Long Term Incenlive Plan is a key link between executives' remuneration and the tong-term success and persformance of the Group. Ne awards
were granted under the existing plan in 2008. As this plan expires in July 2009, shareholders will be asked to approve a seplacement plan at the forihcoming Annual
General Meeting in July 2009,

The new plan will contain the same award timits as the existing plan, namely a maximum potential annual award of shares to an executive of 100% of salary including
aniicipated dividend equévalenis (with the additianal texibitity to grant awards worlh up to 150% of salary in exceptional circumstances, such as an recruitment or in
acute retentien scenarios). The new plan will be based (as was the existing ptan) on @ mixiure of Earnings per Share (*EPS*) and Toial Shareholder Return (“TSR*)

performance measures. Far the initial awards to be grantac in the forthcoming financial year:

+  50% of the awasds will be determined by EPS growlh over a three year perfarmance period. 25% will vest for growth of 5% p.a. over the three year periad (2009-
2012}, with full vesting for growlh of 9% p.a. over the three year period. These largets are regarded by the Committee as highly challenging in the cument
economic environment, Assuming an improved econamic outloak, the Committee would expect 1o set higher targets for EPS growth for fulure awards.

+  50% of the awasds will be delermined by TSR performance relative fo FTSE All-Share companies (excluding Investment Trusts), with 25% of awards vesting for
median performance over the three-year performance period rising 10 100% of awards vesting for upper quanile performance.

The vaiue of dividends payable over the vesting periad wilt be rolled-up and paid out 1o award holders to the exent that awards vest.

The Commitlee befieves that this balance of performance conditions successiully atigns the interests of directors with sharehelders whilst also rewarging ihe
achievement of challenging growth targels relating 1o the underlying financial performance of the Company.

Share malching plan
Selected execulives may be invited to invesl a partion of their cash bonus in the acquisition of Company shares worth up to 25% of their pre-iax salary. Where such
an invesiment is made, the executives will receive, under the Share Matching Plan, a matching award of shares of equivalent vatue.

One-third of the award will vest if EPS growth is ai least RPi+ 4% p.2. over a single three-year performance period, increasing 1o full vesting for EPS growih of at
least RPI+ &% p.a.

Other schemes
The Company can make grants of share opliens under an existing Executive Share Option Scheme although executive directors have not received option grants since
2003 and it is currently intended that they would onty receive fulure oplion grants in exceptional circumstances. Executive directars are eligible to participate in the

Group's Sharesave scheme on the same terms as other employees.

Shareholding guidelines
On the exercise of awards under any of the Company's leng-lerm incentive schemes, executive ditectors are expected to retain af least half of the afler-tax peofil in
the form of shares until they have a shareholding at least equal to their base salaries.

Comgaosition of remuneration package
The fargeted composition of gach exgcutive director's remuneration between fixed and variabte remuneration is approximately 50% derived from salary and bengfits
and 50% from variable incentives,

The remuneration of each non-executive director is 100% non-performance related.

External appoiniments
The Committee believes thal where board members hold directorships in other companies the Company can benefit from Iheir experience. As a result, and subjest
1o the Boaxd's prior approval, executive directors may take an no more than one exiernal dirgclorship and retain any fees eamed. No executive director currently has

any such appointments.
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Directors' service contracts

It is the Company’s policy that, whitst there should not be a lixed duration in respect of direciors' service contracls, each conlracl conlaing notice periods of nol more
than one year and conlaing a clause whereby the coniractual termination payments do not exceed the director's remuneration for the previous calendar year.

Executive Director Contract dale Unexpired lerm from Contractual termination

31 March 2009 payment*
Guy Buswell 31.03.06 12 months 12 months remuneration
Steven Glew 05.06.06 12 months 12 months remuneration
Alec Ross 24.10.07 6 months 6 months remuneration

" In the event of lermination following a change of conlral, executive direciors are entitled fo terrmination paymenis of 12 months remuneration.

Non-Exgcutive directors

Non-executive direciors are initially appoirted lor a three year term, All directors are required by the Company's Articles of Association to submit themselves for re-
election al least every ihree years or in the case of a director appointed by the directors in the past year, such dizector is requited to submii thamseives for re-election
al the next Annual General Meeting).

Non-Executive Director Conlract daie Unexpired term from

31 March 2009
Bill Cockburn 31.03.07 12 months
Trevar Jenking 01.09.08 29 months
Michael Kane 01.10.0t indelinitz
Peter Kang 01.100 indefinite
Philip Stephens 01.04.0% 3 months
Perlormance graph

The graph shown below compares the fatzl shareholder return for an invesiment in lhe shares of Business Post with ibe retum for 1he same invesiment in the FTSE
All-Share index {excluding Investmenl Trusts) over a five year period commencing on 31 March 2004, In the opinion of the Commitiee, the FTSE All-Share index,
exciuding Investment Trusts, is currently the most apprapriate index against which the totat shareholder return of Business Post should be measured and is also the
camparalar geoup vsed in the new Long Term Incentive Plan.
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The above graph illustrates Ihe value at 31 March 2009 of £100 invested in Business Post on 31 Masch 2004 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE All-
Share Index. The olher points plotted are the values ai the intervening financial year-ends.
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Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments received by each director during the year were as follows:

Safary
& Fees Benelits Benus
£000 £000 £000
Guy Buswell 318 13 159
Dennis Clark {1) 10 - -
Bill Cockburn (2) 44 - 400
Steven Glew 226 16 13
Trevor Jenkins {3} 18 - -
Michael Kane (4) 25 2 -
Peter Kane 68 1 -
Alec Ross 185 12 92
Phillip Stephens 30 - -
924 44 764

Benedits comprise company car henefits, health insurance and death in service bengliss.

1. Dennis Clark retired from the Board on 31 July 2008.

2009 2008 Pension Pension
Total Total Cont's Cont's
£000 £000 2009 2008

430 339 48 46
10 30 -

444 58 -

355 245 35 27
18 - - -
27 28 -

69 69 -

289 2 23 23

30 30 - -
1,732 1,000 106 96

2. Included in Bifl Cockburn's remuneration are fees of £44,000 as a non-execulive director and payments of £220 in respect of consuliancy provided lo the Group.

The Company had until March 2008, a separate long lerm incentive agreement with Bilt Cockburmn in relation 10 his consuliancy services. Under this, Mr Cockbuem

was enitled to receive bonuses if the profil of UK Mail exceeded specified 1argets within a four year period of e commencement of frading. Following publication

of the results for the year ended 31 March 2008, Mr Cockburn was entitled to the maximurn 100% payout of £400,000, which was paid this financial year.

3. Trevor Jenkins was appointed to the Board on 1 September 2008.

4. Michael Xane's remureration was paid lo his company, Beaufield Entertainment Ltd, for the period o Octaber 2008, and Beaufield Management Limited thereafter,

for the provision of his services as a director.

Directors’ Executive Share Options

Date of Earligs! Expiry Exercise

Granl Exercise Date Price
Date

Alec Ross

31.06.02 31.05.05 31.05.12 4iBp

No oplions were exercised during the year,

Number at
1 April
2008

24,521

Exarcised
in year

Lapsed
in year

Number at
31 March
2009

24,521

No other directors have been granted share oplions in the shares of the Company or ather Group entities. None of the tesms and conditions of the share options were

varied during the year.

The exercise of options is subject o the condition 1hai the growth in the Company's earnings per share shall exceed the increase in the index of retait prices irom the

date of grant by more than 3% p.a.
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Sharesave Scheme

Dale of Earligst Expity  Exercise Number af Granted Exercised Lapsed Nurnber al

Grani Exercise Date Price 1 Apl in year in year in year 31 March
Date 2008 2009

Guy Buswell

18.07.08 01.09.11 010312 249p - 3715 - 3,775 -

Steven Glew

23.08.06 01.08.09 01.03.10 360p 2,507 - - - 2,597
Alec Ross
27.06.05 07.08.08  01.02.08 486p 1910 - - 1,910 -

The Sharesave Scheme provides a savings plan to purchase shargs and has no perfarmance criteria in order to parlicipate.
The markel price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial year was 250g and the range of prices during the year was between 210p and 338p.

Interests in shares
The interests of the directors in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

31 March 2009 1 Aprit 2008

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares

af 10p of 10p

Guy Buswell 112,592 83,196
Bill Cockburn 17,004 17,004
Steven Glew 41,514 32929
Trevor Jenkins (appointed 1 Sept 2008) - -
Michael Kane 7,010,019 7010019
Peter Kane 6,672,967 6,672 967
Alec Ross 30,061 21
Philip Stephens 15,000 15,000

All directors' interests are beneficially held save for 3,333,334 ardinary shares which are held by beneficiaries who are persons connected with Peler Kane. There has
been na change in the inleresls set out above between 31 March and 20 May 2009.
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Long term incentive plan
Directors' interests in shares held in the Long Term Incentive Plan are as follows:

Date of Award Performance Numnber al Granted Exercised Lapsed Number at
Award Price Period t April in year in year in year 31 March
Ending 2008 2009

Guy Buswell
24.05.05 575p 31.03.08 16,847 - - 16,847 -
17.07.06 437p 31.03.09 62,929 - - - 62,929
04.06.07 463p 31.03.10 66,955 - - - 66,955
146,731 . - 16,847 129,684

Steven Glew

17.07.06 437p 31.03.09 44,622 - - - 44,622

04.06.07 463p 31.03.10 47,516 - - - 47516
92,138 - - - 92,138

Alec Ross

24.05.05 575p 31.03.08 11,130 - - 11,130 -

17.07.06 437p 31.03.09 48,913 - - - 48,913

04.06.07 463p 31.03.10 38.877 - - - 38,877
98,920 - - 11,130 87,790

Awards granied may be exercised heiween three and ten years following the dale of grant.

Vesting of awards graned in 2005 is determingd primarily by reference over a period of three financial years to the Company's Tolal Shaseholder Return ("TSR")
measured against the TSR of all the other companies in the FTSE All-Share Support Services sector. 10% of shares may be exercised if the Company achieves median
ranking, rising pro-rata to 100% if the Company's ranking falls withia ihe top 10%. The exercise of awards is also subjeci to the condition thal the growth in the
Company's earnings per share shall exceed the increase in the index of refail prices from the date of grant by mare than 3% p.a.

No shares vested under the 2005 awasd, lollowing failue ol the EPS condition for the year ended 31 March 2008,

Awards ganted in 2006 and 2007 are subject to two distinct performance conditions. 40% of the awards will be determined by EPS growth over a performance periad
of three financial years. 25% will vest for grawih af 15% p.a. with fult vesting for growth of 20% p.a., and pro-rata in between. The other 60% of the awards will be
determined by TSR perlormance relative to FTSE All-Share companies (excluding Investment Trusts} with 25% of awards vesting for median performance over the
performance peried of three financial years rising to 100% of awards vesting for upper guartile performance.
Subsequent to the year end the performance conditions for the awards granied in 2006 have been determined. The EPS condition has been met in full and the TSR
condition vested al 54.34%, resulting in 2n overall vesting of 94.34%. The awards will vest on 17 July 2009.

The Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust holds shares in the Company for subsequent transfer to employees under the Long Term Incentive Ptan. Shares hetd
by the Trust are nol voled 21 shareholder meetings and do not accrue dividends. At 31 March 2009, the Trus! held a tofal of 624,817 shares in respect of its futurg
abligations under the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan.
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Share matching plan

Details of shares purchased and matching grants awarded during the year are as follows:

Date of
Grant

Guy Buswell
15.11.06

04.06.07
03.06.08

Steven Glew
04.06.07
03.06.08

Alec Ross
04.06.07
03.06.08

Earligst
Exercise Dale

15.11.09
04.06.10
03.06.11

04.06.10
03.06.11

04.06.10
03.06.11

Number at Granted Exercised Lapsed Number at
1 April In year in year in year 31 March
2008 2009
2000 - - 2,000
34,325 - 34,325
- 5082 5,082
36,325 5,082 41,407
7,929 - - 7929
- 3,585 - 3,585
7,929 3,585 - 11,514
5663 - - 5,663
- 2,950 - 2950
5,663 2,950 - - 8,613

One-third of these award will vest if EPS growth is at least RPY + 4% p.a. over a single three-year performance period, increasing pro rata to full vesting for EPS growth

of at least RPl + 6% pa.

Awards may be exercised between 36 months and 42 months following e date of grant,

One-0ff Long Term incentive Award
Directors' interests in shares held in the One-03f Long Term Incentive Award are as follows:

Date of
Award

Guy Buswell
17.07.06

Steven Glew

17.07.06

Award
Price

450p

450p

Perloimance Number at Granted
Periog 1 April in year
Ending 2008
31.03.09 170,000 -
31.03.0¢ 50,000 -

Exgrcised
in year

Lapsed Number at
in year 31 Marth
2009

170,000

- 50.000

The extent to which these one-off awards {approved by sharehalders at the 2006 AGM) vest will be determined by the Company's EPS in 2009 relative to the adjusted
budgeted EPS for 2007. The awards will only begin 1o vest for growth of 15% p.a. between these two figures with 100% vesting for growth of 20% p.a. Although the
performance periad for these awards is three years from grant, the targets are expressed as growth from the budget figure for 2007 in order 10 ensuie (hat the largeds are
more chalienging than those under the LTIP As a result, the EPS vatue required in 2009 for these ene-off awards ¢ begin to vest is higher than the EPS value required
in that year for the maximum LTIP awasd 1o vest.

Subsequent to the year end the performance condition for the one-ofi awards has been determined and will result in a vesting leve) of 99.9%. The awards will vesi an

17 July 2009.

Philip Stephens
On behalt ¢f the Board

20 May 2009
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited cansolidated accounts of
Business Post Group Plc for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal activity and business review

Business Post Group Pl¢ is a pubfic limited company incorporated and demiciled in
England and the holding company of UK Mail Limited, Business Post Limited and
UK Pallets Limiled. It is quoted on the London Stock Exchange (LSE: BPG). The
Group's principal activily is the provision of express colleclion and delivery services
for parcels, mail and palletised goods. The information that fullils the reguirements
of he Business Review ¢an be found in the Chairman’s Statement, Business Review
{including Financial Overview), and Corporate Social Responsibility statemenis,
which are incorporated in this report by reference.

Results and dividend

The protit for the financial year of £9.3 million is reported in the Consolidated
Income Statemend. A finai dividend of 10.8p per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2008 was paid on 25 July 2008. An unchanged interim dividend of 6.4p
per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 was paid on 16 Janyary 2009
and the directors recammend 3 fina! dividend of 10.8p per share, payable on 14
August 2009 to shareholders on the register on 24 Juty 2009.

Gorporate governance
A statemenl on corporate govemance and the Graup’s compliance with the
Carnbined Code is sel out ins the Corporate Governance statement.

Donaticns

During the year, the Group made charitable donations of £9,536 1o Cancer
Research UK (2008: £62,730), for general charitable purposes. The Group made
no political donations.

Directors

Bried particulars ol the directors in office as at the date of this Reporl are shown in
the Direclors and Advisers section of this Annual Repart.

Dennis Clark retired from the Beard or 31 July 2008. Trevor Jenkins was appointed
as a fon-executive direcior on 1 September 2008 and will stand for re-election at
the Annuat General Meeting, Guy Buswell and Peter Kane will, in accordance with
the Asticles of Asseciation, retire by rotation al the Annual General Megting and,
being eligitle, offer themselves for re-efection. The Board strongly supparts the re-
election of Guy Buswell and Peter Kane and the re-election of Trevor Jenking and
recommends that sharehoiders vete in favour of such eleglions. Guy Buswell
continues to be effective as Chiel Executive and demonstrates commitment to his
ole. Peter Kane (logether with his brolher Michae! Kane) founded the company in
1974, His detailed understanding of the business provides valuable insight during
Board discussions and enables a defailed assessmen! of the Company's
performance, Trevor Jenking brings substantial experience to the Board and is
currently Chief Financial Officer of Reed Business, a division of Reed Elsevier Group
Plc and has previously held senior financial roles at Pearson Plc and Mars Inc.

The Board has underiaken an evatuation of the Chairman wha is submitting himself
for re-election and confirms that his performance continues to be effective and thal

he commits sufficient time to the fulfilment of his duties as director and committee
member, as appropriate,

Directors’ indemnities

In accardance with the Gompany’s Articles of Association, directars are granied an
indemnity from the Company to the extent permitied by law in respect of liabilities
incurred as a result of their office. The Company maintaing insurance against
certain liahilities which could arise from a negligent act or a breach of duty by its
directors and officers in the discharge of their duties.

Employment policy

The Group’s palicy is to maintain, as far as praclicable, close consuitations with
employees an matters likely to atfect their interests and, 1o 1his end, established an
Employee Consultative Group in April 2003, The Group is an equat opportunities
employer and holds an Investors in People ceriificale.

The Group’s policy and praclice is to encowage the reciuitment and subsequent
fraining, career development and promation of disabled persons according 1o their
aptitudes and abilities and the retention and retraining of employees who zlso
become disabled during their emptoymenl.

Further information corcerming the Group’s human resource managemen! activities
is set cul in the Corporate Social Responsibility statement,

Environmental responsibllity and health and safety
A statement on the steps laken to operate the business in pursuit of good

environmental and health standards is set out in the Corporate Social Responsibility
statement.

THrectors’ interests

The interests of the directors and their families as appearing in the register maintained
under the provisions of the FSA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules in the share
capilal of the Company on 31 March 2009 are set out in the Remuneration Report.

Share capital

Details of the movement in authorised and issued share capital of the Company
during the financial year 10 31 March 2009 can be found al note 23 1o the financial
stalements on page 59.

Substantial sharehofders

In addition 1o the interests of Peter Kane (12.2%) and Michael Kang (12.8%), as al
20 May 2003 the Company had been natified of the following notifiable interests in

its issued share capital:
As a percentage of

the issued
No. of shares share capital

Mr John Kane 15,014,167 (27.46%)
M & G Invesiment Management 5,149,579 (9.42%)
Schroder Investment Management 3,502,913 (6.41%)
Ms Joanna Bailey 3,333,333 {6.10%)
Fidelity investments 2,175,265 {3.98%)
Liontrust Asset Management 1,702,889 {3.11%)

Mr John Kane and Ms Joanna Bailey are the adult children of Peter Kane.
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Directors’ Report

Takeover directive

The Company has considered the disclosure requirements under the Takeover
Dirggtive and beligves relevant ¢etalls can be found as failows:

«  The structure of the Company’s capital (see note 23),

* in respect of persons wilh significant direct or indirect ho'dings of
securities in the Company, the identity of the persen and the nature af the
aghts {see the Remureration and Direclars’ reporis).

+ Details of any rules that the Company has about appoiniment and
replacement of ditectors and details of any rules abous the amendment of
ihe Company's Articles of Association (see Corporale Gavernance seclion,
Direclors’ Reporl and the Articles of Association, which is made available
for inspection as set out in the Notice).

»  Details of the powers of the Company’s direciors, including, in particular,
any powers in relation 1o the issuing or buying back by the Company of ils
shares (see Direclors' Report and Articles of Association, which is made
available for inspeclion as set out in the Notice).

+ Details of any agreements between the Company and its directars or
employees providing for campensation for 10ss of office or employment
(thwough resignalion, purporled redundancy of otherwise} that accurs
because of a takeover bid {see Remuneration Report).

Supplier payment pollcy

The Group’s policy canceming 1he payment of its trade payables is 1o follow the

Better Payment Practice Code which can be found at hitp://www.payontime.co.uk,

The Group endeavours to agree standard ierms of payment with its major suppliers

at the commencement of business. Supgliers fulfilling 1he conditions of supply are

paid in accordance wilh the agreed standard terms, Other suppliers are paid in
accordance with contractual terms as agreed Irom time to time. As ai 31 March

2009, the Group had an average of 34.8 days (2008: 32.2 days) purchases

outstanding in Irade creoitors.

Properties

The directors are of the opinion that the cureent market value of the Group's
properties is net significantly different from the amaunil at which they are included
in the balance sheet.

Going Concern

The Group’s business aclivilies, together with ihe factors likely io affect its {uiure
development, performance and position are selout in the business teview on pages
4 to 15, The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and
borowing facilities are also described in the business review. The business review
and note 35 to the financial stalements include a description of the Group's
objeclives, policies and processes for managing its capilal, its financial risk
management objectives, and its expasures (o credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has considerable financial resources avaitable and a strang balance
sheel, a5 explained in the business review on page 12. Cash flow plans are
prepased as part of the Gsoup’s annuzl budgel and thieg year plan, These plans are
sensitised lo provide an urderstanding of the impac! of risks. The plans are subjact
to a review by Intemal Audit who provide a report to the Beard. The Board has
reviewed and approved (hese plans. As a result, the direclors believe that the Group
is well plaged to manage ils business risks successfully despite the challenging
market conditions.
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The directors are satisfied that the Group has adgquate resources to continug in
business for the foieseeable futuse and consequently a going concern basis
conlinues 1o be appropriale in preparing the accounts.

Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors

In the case of each af the persons who are directors 2t the time when he report is
appraved, the following applies:

+ 50 far as the director is aware, there is na relevant audit information of
which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

» fhe director has taken alt sleps thal he oughl to have taken as a direcior in
arder to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and 1o
establish Ihat the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness fo
continue in office, and a Jesolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed al
the Anncal General Mesting,

Annual general meeting - special business

The notice of the Annual General Megting lo be held en 5 July 2009 may be found
al the back of the Repor and Accounts. In addition 1o the routing business of the
meeting, the specizl business set out below will be ransacted.

Resolution 8 - Long Term Incentive Plan

The Business Post Group Plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 (the "LTIP 2009") is
a new senior managemant share-based incenlive arrangement which replaces the
cuirent Long Term Incenlive Plan, the ten-year life of which expires in 2009. A
summary ¢i the principal terms of the LTIP 2009 can be found at Appendix 1 to the
Notice of Maating.

The remuneration committee of the board of directors (the *Committee”} has

considered carefully the structure of the LTIP 2009 and has concluded that the new

LTiP 2009 should retain broadty the samg paramaters as the plan which it replaces.

In particular:

e the individua! limil on the value of sharas comprising an award {o any
indivigual wilt be 100% of base salary in normal circumsiances in any year; and

+  shares will only be released 1o participants if challenging parformance criteria
are mel over a thiee year period.

For the initial awards there will be a mix of performance criteria. One hatf of an
award will be based on the growth in the Company's earnings per share. The
remaining half will be based on the Company's refative total shareholder return
against the other constituents of the FTSE All Share Index. Total shareholder retum
is @ measure of 2 company's share price and dividend payments.

One additional feature in the LTIP 2009 will be a provision whereby ihe value of
dividends payable on the shares subject lo awards will be rol'ed up and paid out lo
awardhotders to the exteni thal shares vest. This feature will further improve the
alignment of inlerests between awardhotders and sharehatders.

Cverall, the Committee is satisfied that the LTIP 2009 will provide a strong incentive
and reward struclure for ihe creation of long term value.




Directors’ Report

Resolutiens 9 te 11 - Allotments and Market Purchases of Shares

Reselution 9 10 be proposed at the forfhcoming Annual General Meeting will, if
approved by shareholders, authorise the directors to allol up 1o 15,325,763
ordinary shares, representing 28.03% of the ordinary shares currenily in issue of
which 1,477,750 {2.7%) of the ordinary shares currently in issue are currently
reserved for issue under the Company's share option schemes. The balance
available for allotment is therefore 13,848,013 ordinary shares, representing 25.3%
of the ardinary shares currently in issue. The Company does nol curently have any
lreasury shares in issue. The direciors have no present intentior of exercising the
authaority except in connection with the issue of shares under the Company's share
option schemes. This resafution will be proposed as an ardinary resofution and will
expire al the Annua) General Meeting to be held in 2010.

in addilion, Resolution 1D {0 be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting will give Ihe directors authority under Section §5 of the Comparies Act
1985 to allot equily securities for cash o (i) existing shareholders in propartion to
their holdings and (il) othenwise than pursuant to (i) but up to an aggregate nominal
amount equal to £273,371 (representing 5% of the issued ordinary share capital).
This authority will alsa expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting 1o be held in 2010 o & October 2010, This resolution will be proposed as
a special resolution. The Company undertakes ihat it will not issue shares ona non
pte-emptive basis exceeding 7.5% of ils issued share capilal over a three year
. period,

The Companies Act 1985 allows shares purchased by the Company to be held as
Ireasury shares, which may then be cancelied, sold for cash or used to meet the
Company's gbligations under its sharg oplion schemes. The requirements (o allgt
equity securities far cash o existing sharehalders in proportion io their holdings
will also apply lo the sales by the Company of any shares il holds as dreasury
shares. These requiremenis may be similarly disapplied by shareholders. The
authority sought, and limits set, by Resolution 10 will then apply atso to a sa'g of
treasury shares. However, the direclors have na present intention of holding shares
in treasury pursuant to the Companies Act 1985,

Resolution 11 to be proposed al the farihcoming Annual General Meeting will give
the Company authority under Articte 9 of ils Articles of Association and Section
166 of the Companies Act 1985, until the conclusion of the 2010 Annuzl General
Meeting, to make markel purchases of up to 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital for cancellafion at & price of nat less than 10 pence per ordinary share and
nol more than 105% of ihe gverage of the mid-mevkel quotations for a0 ordinary
shaze of the Company (as derived from he Daily Official List of the London Stock
Exchange) for the five business days prior to the date of purchase.

The authority sought by Reselufion 11, to make market purchases of its own
ordinary shares, is intended to apply equally to shares to be held by the Company
as treasury shares in accordance with the Companies Acl. However, as mentioned
above, the directors have no presentintention of holding shares in treasury pursuant
ta the Companies Acl 1985. Resolution 11 is proposed as a special resolution and
will expice on the earlier of the 9 October 2010 and the Annual General Mesling fo
be helg in 2010. The directors do not intend {o exercise this power ¢ther than in
circumstances where they consider this to be in the shareholders' interests and
where this would result in an increase in carnings per share.

if they do utilise this authoridy, the directws wilt neither be encouraging nor
regommending shareholders to buy or sell shares in the Campany nor in any way
suggesting that it is an appropriale time 10 dgal in such shares.

Resolutions 9 1o 11 are replacement autharities for existing authorities taken at the
Annual General Meeting helo on 9 July 2008.

Resolution 12 - Adoption of New Articles of Association

It is proposed in resolution 12 to adopt new anicles ¢f association {ihe “New
Articles"} in order to update the Company's cumrent articles ¢f association {the
“Current Articles™) to 1ake account of changes in English company taw brought
aboul by the Companies Act 2006 and tg inciease the limit of fees paid to Directors.
The resclution adopting the New Articles will only become effective an 1 Oclober
2009 when the last parts of the 2006 Act are implemented.

The principal changes introduced in the New Articles are summarised in Appendix
2 to the Notice of Meeting. Other changes, which are of a minor, lechnical or
clarifying nature and also same more minor changes which merely reflect changes
made by the Companigs Act 2006 or conlorm certain language in the New Articles
where used in the mode| articles for public companies produced by the Department
for Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform have not been noted in the
Appendix. The New Articles showing all the changes te the Current Articles are
available for inspection, as noted on page 72 of this document.

Resolution 13 - Natice of General Meetings

This resclution is required to reflect the propesed imptementation in August 2009
of the Shareholde: Righis Directive. The regulation implementing this Directive wili
increase the notice period for general meetings of the Company to 21 days. Under
the provisions of the New Arlicles the Company will be able to call general
meelings {other than an AGM) on 14 clear days’ notice and would like to preserve
this ability. In order 1o be able 1o do so aler August 2009 sharehatders must have
approved the calling of meetings on 14 days’ notice. Resolulion 13 seeks such
approval. The approval will be effective until the Company's next annual generat
meeting, when i is intended that a similar resolution will be proposed. The
Company will also need to meel the requirements for electranic voling under the
Directive before il can ¢all a general meeting on 14 days’ notice.

By order of the Board

Steven Glew /%

Company Secretary
20 May 2069
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors' report to the members of Business Posi Group plc

We have audited 1he Group and parent company financial stalerents (the *financial
stalements”} of Business Post Graup pic for the year ended 31 March 2008 which
comprise the Gonsolidated Income Slatement, the Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets, the Cash Flow Statements, the Statements of Changes in
Shareholders” Equity and the related noles. These financial sizlements have been
prepared under 1he accounting policies sel oul therein. We have also audited the
information in the Remuneration Report thal is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directars’ respensibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Remuneration
Repart and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Acceuntability and Directors’ Responsibilities section of the
Corporate Governance statement.

Cur responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance wilh relevant legal and regulaiory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's members
as a bady in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Acl 1985 and for no
ather purpose. We do nol, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose ar to any other person to whom this ieport is shown of into
whase hands it may come save where expressty agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

We report o you our opinion as o whether the linancial statements give a true and
fair view and whether the finangial statements and the part of the Remuneration
Report 10 be audiled have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and. as regards the Group financiat stalements, Article 4 of
the 1AS Regulation. We also report to you whether, in our opirion, information given
in the Diractors’ Report is consisient with the financial staternents. The information
given in the Direclors’ Report includes hat specific information presented in the
Business Review and Business Review (Financial Qverview) that is cross referred
from the Principat Activity and Business Review section of the Direclors' Report.

In addition, we report to you if, in our opinien, the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have nol received all the infermation and explanatians we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors'
remuneration and other fransactions is nat disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflecis the company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the Combined Code 2006 specified for our
review by the Listing Rules of the Financiat Services Aulhorily, ang we report if il
does nol. We are not required lo consides whether ihe board's statements gn
internal control cover all fisks ang contrals, of foem an opinicn on the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate govemance procedures or its 7isk and contral precedures,

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it
is cansisleni with the audiled financial staiements. The other information comprises
anly the Intraduction, Chairman's Statemens, the Highlights, the Business Review,
the Business Review (Financial Overview}, the Directors and Advisers Statement,
the Corporate Governance statement, the Audit Committee Report, the Cerporale
Social Respensibility statement, the unaudited part of the Remuneration Report, the
Dirgctors’ Report, the Five Year Summary of Resuts and the Natice of Meeting. We
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consider the implications for our report § we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or malerial inconsistencies wilh the financial statements. Que
responsibilities do not extend ta any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
{UK and lreland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevanl lo the amounis and
disctosutes in the financial stalements and the part of the Remuneration Report
lo be audited. li also includes an assessment of the significant estimales and
judgments mace by the direciors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and
tompany's circumstances, consistenily applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to ofvain all the informalion and
explanations which we considered necessary in arder o provide ws wilh
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or eror. In forming
our epinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentalion of
information in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Repor
fo be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

+ Ihe Group financial stalements give atrue ang fair view, in accardance with
IFRSs as adopted by the Eurgpean Union, of the siale of the Group's alfairs
as at 31 March 2009 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

« the parenl company financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopled by the European Union as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, af the state of
the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2009 and cash flows for the
year ihen ended;

« the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
lo be audiled have been propeily prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985, as regards the group financial statements and Arlicle
4 of the 1AS Regulation; and

« the information given in the Dicectors’ Report is consistent with the financial
statements.

(e AKCoopens LLF

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountanis and Registered Auditors
Wesl London

20 May 2009




Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2009

2008
2009 Restated*
Notes £m fm
Revenue 2 395.7 358.6
Cosl of sales (332.4} (310.5)
Gross profit 53.3 48.1
Adminislrative expenses (36.7) (33.6)
Operating protit before exceptional items 1.7 145
Exceptional administrative itens 3 (1.1) -
Operating protit 5 16.6 14.5
Finance costs 4 (0.5 0.7)
Finance income 4 93 0.4
Profit before taxation 16.4 142
Taxation hefore exceptianal items (5.2) (4.5)
Exceptional tzxation items 3 1.9 -
Total taxation 7 (7.1} {4.5)
Profit for the year __91 ___91
Basi¢ earnings per share 9 17.1p 18.0p
Diluted earnings per share 9 16.8p 17.5p

“see note 5

The profit for the financial year arises from the Group's continuing activities, and is whally attributable to equity halders of the Company.

The related notes numbered 1 to 35 form part of these financial statements,
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2009

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goadwill

Intangible assets
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Defarred lax assets

Current assels
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivatents

LIABILITIES

Current llabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Current 12x liabilities
Provisions

Net current assels

Non-current liabilitles
Borrowings

Deterred tax liabilities
Provisions

Net assets

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary Shares

Share premium
Retained earnings

Total shareholders' equity

The financial statements on pages 37 to 68 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 May 2009 and were signed on ils behalf by:
Fetortent- éL., Busmetd

The related notes numbered 110 35 form part of these linancial statements.
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Nates

10
1"
12
13
A

16
17
18

20
19

22

20

22

23

2008
£m

5.5
16.6
328
549

2008
£m

9.5
1.2
1.0
369
0.3
49,1

03
58.5
16.4
76.2

(1.7)
(56.4)
(2.1
(1.2)
(61.4)
14.8

{8.5)
{1.0)
{1.4)
{9.9)
54.0

5.5
16.6
31.9
54,0

Sieven Glew

Finance Director
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Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2009

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 15 16.3 15.7
16.3 15.7
Current assels
Trade and other igceivables 17 94.3 72.2
Current 1ax assels 0.7 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents 1§ 16.1 0.2
1.1 730
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borowings 20 1.0} 1.0
Traie and other payables 19 (97.5) {50.6)
"~ (985) (51.6)
Net current assels __1_2 ﬂ
Nen-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 (4.0) {5.0)
Net assels 248 __3.2‘1_
Shareholders' equity
Ordinary shares 23 5.5 55
Share premium 16.6 16.6
Retained earnings 28 10.0
Total shareholders’ equity 24,9 __ﬂ
The tinancial statements on papes 37 fo 68 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 May 2009 and were signed on ils hehalf% zy
Petertam 8 us weld Sieverd Glew

Bhaisman Ch ’ ﬁx Koe Finance Director

The related notes mumbered 1 fo 35 form part of these financial statements.

Report & Actounts 39




Cash Flow Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2009

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 25.6 25.7 26.4 33
Finance income received 0.3 0.4 0.2 0.3
Finance cosis paid {0.5) 0.7} (0.4) {0.4)
Taxation paid (4.6) (3.9) - -
Net cash inflow trem operating activities 20.8 215 26.2 32
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1 02 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6.8} (5.0) - -
Purchase of intangible assets 1 (1.5) (0.6 - -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (8.2} (5.4)
Financing activilies
Dividends paid 1o shareholders (9.3} 9.3) (9.3) {9.3)
Repayment o tinance lease liabilifies (0.7} (07 . -
Nel proceeds from issue of ordinary share capitat - 0.3 - 03
Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT - (1.0 - {1.0)
Repayment of borrowings 20 {1.0} (1.0) (1.0} (1.0)
Net cash outilow irom financing aclivities (1.0 (1. {10.3) (11.0)
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 30 1.6 44 15.9 (7.8)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year 30 16.4 12.0 0.2 8.0
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30 18.0 16.4 16.1 0.2

The related notes npmbered 1 1o 35 form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in

Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2009

Group

Balance as at 1 April 2007

Dividends paid lo shargholders

Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT
Employees’ share aption scheme:

- value of employee serviges

- proceeds from shares issued

- exercise of share oplions

Tax on items {aken directly io equity

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2008

Balance as at 1 April 2008
Oividends paid {0 shareholders
Employees' sharg option scheme;
- value of employee services
Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2009

The related notes numbered 1 io 35 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

23

Ordinary Share Retained Total
shares premium earnings Equity
£m £m £m £m

55 16.2 ne 53.5
- - {9.3) {9.3)
- - {1.0) {1.0)

- - 0.9 0.9

- 0.3 - 0.3

- 0.1 {IR}] -
- - (0.1) {0.1)

- 9.7 9.7

5.5 16.6 319 54.0
5.9 16.6 39 54.0
- - (8.3) (9.3)

- - 0.9 0.9

- - 8.3 9.3

5.5 16.6 2.8 54.9
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Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2009

Company Motes

Balance as at 1 April 2007

Dividends paid 1o shareholders 8
Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT 23
Employees' share opiion scheme:

- proceeds from shares issued

- increase in investment in subsidiaries

- exercise of share optians

Lass for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2008

Balance as at 1 April 2008

Dividends paid to shargholders 8
Employees' share option scheme:

- increase in investment in subsidiaries

Profis for 1he year

Balance a3 at 31 March 2009

The telated notes numbered 1 fo 35 form part of these financial statements.
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Ordinary
shares
£m

53

5.5

Share Retained Total
premium earnings Equity
£m £m £m
16.2 19.4 a1
- {9.3) (9.3)
- (1.0) (1.0}

03 - 0.3

- 13 1.3

01 {0.1} .
- {0.3) 6.3

16.6 10.0 321

16.6 10.0 321
(9.3) 9.3)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

Principal Accounting Policies
Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2609

The principal accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these
linancial statements are set out belaw. These palicies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Baslis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and those IFRS standards as adopted by the European
Union and {FRIC interpretations which aie effective as at 31 March 2009
('IFRS’). The follawing Standards, Interpretations and Amendments, which
became effective for and were adopted during the year ended 31 March
2009, had no material impact an the Group's results of finangial position;
Eifective

date

IFRIC 12 "Service Concession Arrangements’ 1 January 2008

IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benelit Asset,

Minimum funding Requirements and their Interaction’ 1 January 2008

The following Standards, Inferpreiations and Amendments are effeclive
subsequent 1o the year end and consequenily have not been adopled lor
ihe year ended 31 March 2009. Application of these will not result in a
material change to the Group's reported resulis or financial position,
1AS 1 {revised) *Prasentation of financial statements’ 1 January 2009
1AS 23 (amendment) 'Borrawing Costs’ 1 January 2009
IAS 32 (amendment) Financial ingtruments: Presentation’ 1 January 2009
1 January 2009
1 July 2009

1 July 2008

IAS 36 (amendment) ‘Intangible assets’

IAS 39 {amendment} 'Recognition and measurement’
IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’

IFRIC 15 ‘Agreements for the construction of real estale’ 1 January 2009
IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a net investmen in a foreign operation’ 1 Qctober 2008

IFRS 1 {amendment) 'Firs! lime adeplion of IFRS
and 1AS 27, ‘Consolidated and separale

financial statements’ 1 January 2009

IFRS 2 {amendment) 'Share-based payment’ 1 January 2009

IFRS 3 {amendment) ‘Business combinatiens' 1 July 2009
IFRS 5 {amendment) ‘Non-current assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operations' 1 July 2009

IFRS 8 '‘Operating segments' 1 January 2009

Upan adoption of IFRS 8, management anticipaies a need to expand on the
cuiven! disclosure in relation io segmenial analysis. The adoption of this
slandard is not expecied to impact the Group's profit or net assels.

The Dirgclors do nol anticipate that the adaption of any of the above
standards or interpretations wilt have a malerial impact on the Group's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

The financial staterments have been prepared under the histarical cost convention,

The preparation of financial statements in confoimity wilh ganeratly accepled
accounting principles, requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities al the date of the financiat
statements and the repoerted amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Although these estimates are based on managements best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results witimately may differ
from lhose estimates.

The critical accounting judgements and he key sowrces of estimalion
uncertainty are detailed in note 34.

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial siatements of
Business Post Groug ple and its subsidiary companies for the year ended 31
March 2008, Advantage has been taken of Section 230 of the Companies Act
1985 not to include the Company’s awn profit and 1oss account. The profit of
the Company for the year was £1.4m {2008 loss; £0.3m).

Gonsolidation

On adoption of {FRS, the Company elecled not fo reslate business
cambinations priar 1o 1 April 2004.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which centrol is lransferred
ta the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date en which control
is transferred out of the Group. On acquisition of a subsidiary, ali the
subsidiary's assets and tiabililies that exist at the date of acguisition are
recorded al their fair values reffecting their condition at ihat date. Changes
to those assets and liabitities, and the resulting gains and losses that arise
after the Group has gained control of he subsidiary are credited or charged
ta the posl acquisition income statement.

Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on consalidation and
consistent accounling policies are used throughoul the Group for the
purposes of the consalidation.

The results, assets and liabilities of the franchise network are not
consolidated into the Group's results as the Group does nat have a
parlicipating share ownership in the franchises, or the ability to direct and
conirof their activities. Additionally, the Group does not bear ar benefit in
the majority of the risks and rewards.

Goodwlll

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fais
value of ideniifiable net asseils of a subsidiary at the dale of acquisition.
Goodwill is measured at cost less impairmen! losses and is tesled for
impairment at least annually.

On the disposal of a business, goodwill refating to that busingss remaining
on lhe balance sheel is included in the determination of the protit ar loss
on disposal.

Intanglble assets {other than goodwill)

Intangible assels include acquired computer software licences nof parl of the
operaling software acquired with 2 relzled piece of hardware. These are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software, These costs are amartised on a siraight line basis over their
estimated useful lives, normally thiee to four years.

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identitiable and
unique software products generaled for use by the Group, and that will
probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognised as intangible assels. These represent the direct employment casts
of sofiware developers time spent on relevant projects. Computer software
development costs recognised a5 assets are amortised over their estimated
useful economic lives typically being three years,

Separately identifizble customer lists acquired by the Group are amertised
over their useful economic lives, nomally 18 months, with provision made for
any impairment.
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Investment properties

Investment properties comprise of freehald and leasehold land and buildings
held foi leng term renial yields and 2se not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are accounted for under the cost model, at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at ¢ost less accumulaled
depreciation and any impairment in value. Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis so as 1o wrife off the cost
of the assels 1o their residual value over their eslimated useful economic
lives, using the following rates:

Freehold buildings fifly years

Short teasehold improvemenis the period of the lease
Motor vehicles, plant and equipment  10% to 33%

14% to 33%

The narmal expected useful economic lives and residual values of the major
categories of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually,

Computer equipmient

The carrying value of property, planl and equipment is reviewed a1 Jeast
annually, Any resullant impairment (osses are charged immediately o ihe
income stalement.

Assels that are subjecl ta depreciation are tested for impairment whenever
evenis or changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amount may
nol be recoverable. An impairment toss is recognised for the amoun! by
which the assel's canying amoun! exceeds its recoverable amoun!, The
recoveratle amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs 10 sell ang
value in use.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in Group underiakings are siated at cost less any provision for
impairment.

The Company reflects the fair value of share-based payments granted to
employees of subsidiary companies as an invesiment in subsigiaries, with
a coresponding credit to equity.

Inventories

Inventaries, represented by fue! stacks held by the Group, are stated at the
lower of cost and nel realisable value,

Cost is determined using the firsi-in-first-oul method and net realisable
valug is the estimated setling price less cosls of disposal in the ordinary
course of business.

Finance and operating leases

Leasing agreements, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of an asset, are freated as if the asset has been
purchased outright. The assets are included in fixed assels and the capital
elements of the leasing commitments are shown as obligations under
finance leases. The lease renlals are treated as cansisting of capital and
interest elements. The capiial element is applied to reduce the guistanding
obligations and the interest element is charged against profit so as 1o give
constant periodic rales of charge on the remaining balange quistanding at
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¢ach accounting period. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
aver the shorter of the lease term and the useful lives of equivalent owned
assels.

Leases where the Group does not retain substantialty all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset, are classilied as operating feases. Operating lease rental
payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue

Revenue reflects all saes made by Business Post, whether delivered by
nelwork services or a franchisee, as the Group remains the principal in alt
Iransactions. Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which
consignments are delivered to customers.

Income from investrent properties is recognised on a staaight line basis over
the term of the lease, even if the payments are not receivec on such a basis.

All reveriues are stated net of value added tax.
Cost of sales

Cosl of sales reflects all the direct costs incursed in the collection and
delivery of a consignmeni, including the cosis of sub-centracled ang
employed drivers, linehaul costs, and Royal Mail access costs, logether
with the direct cosis of operating the network. Cosl of sales includes the
deprecialion cost ¢f network vehicles, cages and site equipment.

Administrative costs

Adminisirative costs reflect all the eslablishment and cenlral support cosls
of the Group, in¢luding the remuneration of non-operaticaal site based staff
ang head office personnel, depiecialion of buildings, amortisation of
central IT systems, and bad debis.

Taxatign

The company provides deferred income tax using the balance sheet liability
method on all temporary differences al the balance sheel date between the
tax hases of assets and liabilities and {heir carrying amounis for financial
reporling purposes. Deferred lax assels are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that faxable profit will
be available against which the deduciible temperary differences, carry-
forward of unused 1ax assets and unused 2% losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the lax raies that
apply to the period when Ihe assel is realised or the liabilily is setiled,
based cn tax rates (and 1ax faws) thal have been enacled or substantively
gnacted at the balance sheel date.

The tax expense represents the sum of ihe tax curently payable and
deferred fax.

The tax currently payable is based on the 1axable profit far 1he year. Taxable
profit differs from the net prolit in the income statement because it
excludes items of incomme or expense that are taxable or deduclible in other
years and it further excludes ilems that are never taxable or deductidle.

Full provision is made for deferred taxation on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised separately on
the balance sheel. Deferred iax assels are tecognised only fo the extent that
they are expected to be recoverable.
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Deferred 1axation is recognised in the income statement unless it relates 1o
taxable transactions taken direcity io equity, in which case ihe deferred tax
is also recognised in equity. The deferred tax is released to the income
statemeni ai the same time as the taxable transaction is recognised in the
income stalement,

Penston costs

The Group sponsars employaes' personal pension plans, The assels of the
plans are held separately from those of the Group in independenily
administered funds. The pension costs charged in the income statement
represent contributions payable by the Group to ihie ptans together with the
administration charges of the plans.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in toreign currencies are recorded in sterling at the rate ruling
al the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in
foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling al the
balance shee! dale. All exchange dilferences arising from trading
transactions are deall with in the income statement,

Share-based payments

The cosls of equity-seftled share-based payments are recognised in the
income statement with a carrespanding increase in equity oves the vesting
periad as services are provided 1o the Group. The charge i based on the
fair value of the equity instrumenti granted and the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest.

The fair value is measured al grant date and iakes account of vesting
conditions that relale to the masket price of the Company's shares. In order
io detesmine the value of the instrument a pricing model relevant to the
type of instrument is used.

The costs of cash-sellled share-based payments are recognised in the
Income statement with a correspanding increase in liahititias over the
vesling period as services are provided to the Group. The charge is based
on the fair value of the liability at each eporting date, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the income stalement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present abligation {tegal or
consiructive) as a result of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o setlle the
abtigation and a reliable estimate can be mage of the amount of the cbligation.

Where the Group expecls a provision to be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance centract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but onty when the reimbursement is virlually certain. If the effect af the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows af a pre-iax rate that reflecls current market
assessments of the time valug of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
pravision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Conlingent liabilities represent pessible obligations whose existence will
be cenfitmed only by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one of more
uncerlain future evenis not whally under the control of the Group.
Contingen liabilities also include certain obligations thal will prabably not
lead 1o an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, or where the
ouiflow of resources embodying economic benefits can not be measured
with sufficient relizbility. In accordance with [FRS, contingent liabilities are
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not recagnised as liabilities.
Exceptional items

Material and non-recurring items of income and expense are disclosed in
the income statement as exceplicnal ilems. Examples of ilems which may
give rise 1o disclosure as exceptional items include maleriai gains or
losses on the disposat of businesses or fixed assels, malerial assel
impairments, and businass rearganisation and restructuring costs.

Dividends

Interim dividends are recognised as a istribulion from retained earnings in
ihe period in which they are paid.

Final dividends are recognised as a distribution from retzined earnings in
the period in which they are approved ai the general meeting.

Financial instruments

Financia! assels and linancial liabilities are recognised in the ba'ance sheet
when the Group becomes a parly 1o the coniractual provisions of the
instrument, Financial assets are de-recognised when the Group no longer
has the righis 1o cash flows, the risks and rewards of awnership or controi
of the asset. Firancial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation
under 1he liability is discharged, cancetled or expiras.

Trade and other receivables: These are recognised and carried at the
original invoice amount less an allowance for any non-caliectible amounts.
Pravision is made when there is objective evidence that the Group wilf not
be able to collect the debls. Bad debts are writien off fo the income
statement when identified.

Franchise receivables: These are recognised and carried al the original
amount owed to the Group less an alfowance for any nor-collectible
amounls. Provision is made when there is objeclive evidence thal the
Group will not be able to collect the receivable. Bad debts are written off to
the income statement when identilied.

Share capital: Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly altributable 1o the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds received. Own equity instruments that are
reacquired (treasury shares) or shares held in lhe Employee Share
Ownership Trust (ESOT) are deducled from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in the income statemenl on the purchase, sale, issue of
cancellation of the Group’s own equily instruments.

Derivallve financial instruments: The fair value of the instrument is re-
measured at each reporting date, with any gains or losses credited of
charged to the income statement.

Interest-hearing loans and borrowlngs: All interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are inilially recognised at fair value plus dicectty atiribuiable
transaction costs. Afler initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and
borcowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte
account any issue costs, and any discount or premium.

Cash and cash equivatenls: These comprise cash in hand and current
balances with banks and similar institutions, which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o insigniticant risk of
changss in value and have an original maturity of three monihs or less.

Far the purpose of the cash flaw stalements, cash and cash eguivalents
consist of cash and ¢ash equivalenls as defined above, net of outsltanding
bank overdrafts.
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2 Segmenta! Infarmation

The Group's primary segment reporting is by business sector with geographical reparting being the secondary farmal. The business sepments consisi of Parcel
Services (828, International and 82C), Mait Services (UK Mail), Speciatisi Services (UK Pallets and Courier), and Other (Network costs and Central Support).
Central Suppor! comprises commaon Group Head Office functions inctuding HR, finance and IT. Eliminations largely comprise of non-operational inter-segmentat
balances. Costs, assels and liabilities are atlocated to specific business segments wherever possitle. There are no sales belween business segments.

The Group manages its business segments on a nationat basis, with all its aperalions in the UK, as are nearly all of the customers. The Group therefore considers
that il operaies in one geographic markel, namety the UK.

Primary reporting format - business segments
The business segment results for the year ended 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Parce! Mall  Speclalist
Services Services Services Other  Eliminations Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 1723 164.9 48.9 - - 385.7
Operating profit/{loss) before excepliona) items 16.4 1% 25 {128} . 111
Exceptional items - adminisiralive expenses (0.8) - {0.3) - . {1.1)
Operating profit/{loss) 15.6 11.6 2.2 {12.8} . 16.6
Finarce costs (0.5}
Finange income 0.3
Profit before taxation 16.4
Taxation (7.1)
Net profil attributable to equity shareholders 9.3
Segment assets 56.4 57.8 5.2 35.6 (31.8) 123.2
Segment liabilities (32.9) (36.6) (15.5) {15.1) 31.8 68.3)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment {note 13) 3.0 1.1 2.9 1.7 - ' 6.7
- Intangibie assets (note 11) D2 0.2 1.2 - 1.6
Depreciatian - invesiment properiies (note 12) -
Depreciation of property, plani 3and equipment {role 13}
- Owned assels 24 0.5 0.3 1.3 - 45
- Under finance leases 0.1 0.5 - - - 0.6
Amortisation of injangible assets {nole 11)
- Owned assets 0.1 01 0.3 - 0.5
- Under finance leases 0.3 - - - 0.3
Impairment of trade receivables 0.8 0.1 03 - 1.2
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The business segment results for the year ended 31 March 2008 are as follows

Parcel Mail Spacialist
Services Services Services Other  Eliminations Group
£m fm £m m fm fm
Revenue 179.8 137.3 4.5 - 358.6
Operating profi/(loss) before exceplional ilems 15.4 10.0 1.3 (12.2) 14.9
Exceplional items - adminisirative expenses - - - -
Operaling prafil/{loss) 154 100 1.3 (12.2) - 14.5
Finance costs (0.7)
Finance income 0.4
Profit before taxation 14.2
Taxation {4.5)
et profit attributable to equity shareholders 9.7
Segment assets 59.7 496 71 401 (31.2) 125.3
Segment liabilities (27.9) {36.0) {25.0) {136) 3.2 {71.3)
(Other segment items
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment {note 13) 25 0.4 0.3 1.7 540
- Intangible assets {note 11) - 03 - 03 - 06
Depreciation - invesiment properfies (note 12) - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment (note 13)
- Owned assels 18 0.4 0.2 23 - 4.7
- Under finance teases 01 05 - - - 06
Amorlisation of inlangible assets {note 11)
- Dwned assets - - 0.1 0.2 - 0.3
- Under finance leases - 03 - - - 0.3
Impairment of trade receivables 0.5 a1 03 - - 0.7
Company

The company’s business is to invest in its subsidiaries and, therelore, it operates in a single segmenl.
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3 Exceptional items

2008 2008

£m £m

Operaticns restruciure 1.1 0.7
FadEx termination costs - {0.7)
Exceplional taxation charge i 19 -
Exceptional items 3.0 -

Operatlons restructure

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the board approved a 3 year change programme, designed to both integrate the difterent parts of the Group more, and to improve the
network infrastructure. This resulled in a number of structural changes in operational and sales management, and the regionalisation of cuslomer care genlres, the costs of
which were £0.7m.

Further structural changes were made during the year ended 31 March 2009, including the closure of a number of owned and franhised operational sites (with relevant operations
transferred 1o nearby tocations), and the restruciuring of some central functions. This resulted in one-oif redundancy costs of £0.8m and poperty related costs of £0.3m.

FedEx termination cosls

Following the cassation of the contract from 30 Aprii 2007 to act as FedEx's global service participant in the UK, anticipated axit costs of £1.3m were provided for,
including one-olf redundancy and management restructuring costs, vehicle livery removal, uniform replacement and legal expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, a surplus provision of £0.7m was released, following 2 number of successiul management inifiatives, including redeployment
of a number of stall, a phased roll-out programme of the new fleet complete with new fivery, and a number of other locally driven site-based initiatives.

Exceplional taxation charge

The exceptional taxation charge comprises a £2.2m write-off {2008: Enil) of a deferred faxation balance resuiting trom the phased abolition of UK Industrial Building Allowances
{'1BAs') following enaciment of the Finance Act 2008, offsel by £0.3m (2008; £nil) taxation reliet in respect of the exceplional operations restruciuring costs included above.

4  Finance cosls - net

2009 2008
£m £m
Interest payable on:
Term loan (0.3} (0.4)
Finance leases {0.2) {0.3)
Finance costs {0.5) (0.7)
Intesest receivable on:
Bank balances 0.2 0.4
Other interest 0.1 -
Finance income 0.3 04
Finance cosis - net (0.2) (0.3
Cther interest receivable includes £0.1m (2008; £nil) of intergst receivable relaling to corporation tax oveipayments.
5 Operating profit
2009 2008
£m fm
The foflowing items have been charged/{credited) in arriving at operating profit:
Employee benefits expense (nate 6) 69.2 65.3
Cost of inventories recognised {inctuded in cosl of sales} (note 16) 11.7 10.7
Depreciation of investment properties (note 12) - 01
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment (note 13) 5.1 5.3
Arnortisation of intangibles {included in agminisirative expenses) (note 11) 0.8 06
Operating lease rentals payab!e
- Plant 2nd machirery 8.5 93
- Property 5.0 48
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on pioperty, plant and equipment 3.3 34
Other operating lease rentals receivable
- Plant and machinery {0.3) 0.5)
- Property {0.4) {0.4)
Trade receivables impairment {included in agministrative expenses) 1.2 0.7
{Reversal of impairment)/impairment of franchise receivables {included in administrative expenses) - [(1R)]
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Restatement

During the year the Group reviewed the categorisation of depretiation cests. As a esult, £3.9m of depreciation cost which in the resulis for ihe year ended
31 March 2008 had previously been included in administrative expenses, has been re-classified within cost of sales, reflecting the purpose in which these assets

are used. Note 1 provides further details.

Servicaes provided by the Company's auditer
QOuring the year the Group obtained the foltowing services from the Company's audilor and s associates:

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent company and consolidated Financial Siztemenls

Fees payable to the Company's augitor and its associales for other services:
- The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant 1o fegislation

- Dthes services pursuant 1o fegislation

- Tax services

G Employees and directors

Employee benefi! expense (or the Group during the year

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Qther pensien costs™
Share-based payments

*(ther pension costs all refate to defined contribution schemes.
The zhove tigures include costs classified as exceptional.

Average monthly number of people (Including executive directors) employed

By business group

Parce! services
Mail services
Specialist services
Central

The average number of persons employed by the Company was nil (2008: nil).

Key management compensation

Salaries ang short-term employee benefits
Posi-employment benefiis

Terminalion benefils

Share-based payments

The key management figures given above include the main board directors, both executive and non-gxecutive.

Details of directors' emoaluments are set out in the Remuneration Report.

2009
£000

17

2009
Number

2,183
146
352
153

2,834

2009
£000

2,600
13

826
3,611

2008
£000

120

2008
Number

2,303
141
380
161

2,985

2008
£000

1,585
17

834
2,606
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Directors remuneration

Aggregate emalumenis
Company contributions 1o money purchase pension schemes*

" Contributions were made in respect of three (2008: threg) directors.
Further details of directors' emoluments are sel aut in the Remuneration Report.

7 Taxation

Analysis of charge in period

Current 1ax - current year

Current fax - adjustment in respect of prior years

Oeferred lax (note 21) - current year

Deterred fax (note 21) - adjusiment in respeci of prior years
Taxation

2009 2008
£000 £000
1,732 1,000
106 96
1,838 1,096
2009 2008
£m £m
5.1 48
{0.9) {0.2)
2.0 (0.2)
0.1 0.1
7.1 4.5

The differences between Ihe total current tax shown above and the amaunt caiculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporaticn 1ax to the profit before tax

are explained below:

Profit on ordinary aclivities befare tax
Profit on ordinary aclivities mulliptied by rate of carparation fax in the LK of 28% {2008: 30%)

Eifecis of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Abolition of 1BAs {shown as excepiionai lax charge - see nole 3)
Adjusiment in respect ¢f prior years

Total tax charge

2009 2008
Em £m

16.4 14.2
4.6 43
0.4 0.3
2.2 -
(0.1) (0.1)
7.1 4.5

As a resutt of the enaciment of the UK Finance Act 2008 during the year, UK Industrial Building Allowances ('IBAs') are to be gradually phased cud gver the periog

to 31 March 2011. This has resulted in a ane-off deferred tax charge 1o the income statement of £2.2m {2008 Enil).
Additionally, £nil {2008: £0.1m) of deferred tax has been debiled directly te equily in respect of share opliens.
8 Dividends

Graup and GCompany

Final 2008 paid: 10.80p (2007; 10.80p) per 10p share
Interim pai¢: 6.40p (2008: 6.40p) per 10p share

2009
£m

5.8
3.5

2008
£m

58
3.5

In addition, the directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ending 31 March 2009 ol 10.8p per share which will absorb an estimated
£5.8m of shareholders' funds. It witl be paid on 14 August 2009 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 24 July 2009.

9 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculaled by dividing the profit for the year (the "eamings") aftributatle to ordinary sharehalders by the weighted average number of

ordinary shases outstanding during the year, excluding those held in the employee share ownership tiust {note 23), which are treated as cancelled.

For diluled earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shases in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Group has twa classes of dilulive potential ordinary shares: those share options granted to emplayees where the exercise price is less than the average marked
price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year, and the contingenity issuable shares unger the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan,
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Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are sel oul below.

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average Per share average Per share
Earnings number of amount Earnings number of amount
£m shares pence £m shares pence

Basic EPS
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 93 54,049,420 1714 8.7 54,068,346 180
Eftect of dilutive shares
Optians . §7,687 . - 51,552 -
Long Term Ingentive Pian - 1,000,757 {0.3) - 1,360,229 (0.5)
Diluted EPS 9.3 55,107,864 16.8 §.7 55,480,127 17.5
Basic EPS
Earnings attribulable to ordinary shareholders 9.3 54,049,420 174 9.7 54,068,346 18.0
Exceptignal ilems {note 3) 30 - 5.6 - - -
Adjusted EPS* 12.3 54,049,420 22,7 9.7 54,068,346 18.0
Effect of dilutive shares
Options - 57,687 . 51,552 -
Loag Term Incentive Plan - 1,000,757 {0.4) - 1,360,229 (0.5)
Diluted Adjusted EPS* 12.3 55,107,864 22.3 9.7 55,480,127 17.5

* Adjusted and diluted adjusted earnings per share have been calcuiated excluding the exceptional ifems and the associaled tax impact.

10 Goodwill
2008 2008
Group £m £m

Cost
Al 1 April and 31 March

Aggregate impairment
Al 1 April and 3% March

ot
. 2]

Net book value
At 1 April and 31 March

w
w

As required under IAS 36 "mpairment of Assets’, goodwill has been allocated o 1he lowest leve! of cash-generating unil and has been tested for impairment.
The camying ameunts of goodwill by company are as follows;

2009 2008
£m £m

BXT Limited 1.6 |
UK Pallets Lid 1.9 79
Net book value a1 31 March 9.5 3.5

Gaodwil! is tested for impairment annuzlly at the time the Group prepares its annual budgets. Each impairment review iakes account of ihe recoverable amount
¢f the cash-generating uniis which is determined on a value in use basis. The 2010 budget was extrapolaled using growth rates in the range of 1% ta 6% pa for
the first five years and 2.25% thereafler, being the long term GDP growth rate of the UK economy. The pre-tax discount rates are in the 8% to 9% range.

Sensltivity to changes in assumptions

Growth of market and market share

Managemenl has considered the impact of a variance in the growth of the markel and market share, The value in use calculation shows that if both the assumed
geowth rates during the initial five year forecast period and the Jong lerm growth rate were reduced to nil, the recoverable amoun! of each CGU would oe greater
than its carrying value.

Pre-tax discount rate

Management has considered the impac! of an increase in Ihe pre-tax discount rate applied to this calculation. The valuein use calculation shows that if the pre-
tax discount rate was increased to 11%, the recoverable amount of each CGU would be greater fhan its carrying valve.

Reporl & Accounts 51

A




Notes to the Financial Statements

11

12

Market structure

Management balieves that there will be no Struclural changes in either the palletised goods or courier markels which will aflect these farecasts.

Intangible assets

Group

Cost

A 1 April 2008
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2009

Aggregate amortisation

At 1 Aprit 2008
Charge for the year
Disposats

At 31 March 2009

Net book value at 31 March 2009

Group

Cost

At 1 April 2007
Additions
Oispasals

At 31 March 2008

Aggregate amortisation
A1 April 2007

Charge for the year
Dispesals

At 31 March 2008

Net book value at 31 March 2008

Customer
{ists
£m

=
-

=
—t

Acquired
software lcences
£m

0.6
(0.5)

»n

Acquired
soffware licences
tm

29
03

1)
T

internal software
developments
£m

0.3
0.9

-
[

-
L~

Internal software
developments
£m

o
w

o
w

0.

s

Total
fm

3.4
1.6
(0.5)

o

2.2

{0.5)

od
o

N
=

Total
g

3

29
0.6
0.1)
~ 34

Amortisation of customer lists Is charged through cost of sales. Seftware refated amortisation charges have been charged lhrough administrative expenses.

Investment properties

Group

Cost
AL 31 March

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April

Charge for the year

At 31 March

Net book value at 31 March
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2009
£

32

-
-

p=
-

o
|

|

-
=]

2008
£

3

—
]

0.6
0.1

o
~

-
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13

Investment properlies are accounled for under the cost model, &t cost tess accumulated depreciation and accumplated impaitment losses and are deprecialed
over fifty years on a straight line basis.

One {2008: one) investment property is held by the Group, located in the Wes! Midlangs, and is being sublet under an operating lease. The renlal income
recagnised in the year was £0.2m (2008; £0.2m). Direct operating expenses incurred were £nil (2068: Lnil).

The property was valued by qualified professional valuers working for the company of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chariered Surveyars, acting in the capagity of
External Valuers in March 2009. All such valuers are Chartered Surveyors, being members of the Royal Institution of Charlered Surveyars {"RICS*). DTZ
Dehenham Tie Leung is a wholly owned subsidiary of DTZ Holdings plc (the "D72 Group”). In the linanciat year io 30 Aprii 2009, the propartion of lotal fees
payable by the Group io the 1otal fee income of the OTZ Group was less than 5%.

The property was valued an the basis of Market Value a1 £2.5m (2008: £3.0m), primarily derived using comparable receni markel tzansaclions on arm's lengih
terms. The valuatior: was carried out in accordance wilh the RICS Appraisal and Valualion Standards.

The Company does not own any investment properties (2008: none).

Property, plant and equipment
Mator
Short vehicles
Freehold land {easehold plant and Computer
and buildings  improvemenis equipment equipment Total
Group £fm £m £m em £m
Cost
At 't April 2008 219 2.7 25.5 10.0 60.1
Additians - 0.3 4.2 2.2 6.7
Disposals - - (2.9) (1.4} (3.9}
At 31 March 2009 219 3.0 212 10.8 62.9
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 April 2008 - a 0.7 12.4 7.0 23.2
Charge for the year 0.4 0.2 31 1.4 8.1
Disposals - - (2.3) {1.3) {3.6)
At 31 March 2009 35 0.9 13.2 IA 24.7
Net bock value at 31 March 2009 184 2.1 14.0 37 38.2
Molor
Shart vehicles
Freehold land leasehold plant and Camputer
and buildings improvements equipment equipment Total
Group fm fm fm fm tm
Cost
Al 1 April 2007 217 26 247 12.7 61.7
Additions 0.2 0.2 2.8 18 5.0
Disposals - {0.1) {2.0) {4.5) (6.5)
At 31 March 2008 21.9 27 25.5 10.0 601
Accumutated depreciation
At 1 April 2007 2.7 0.6 i 94 244
Charge for the year 0.4 0.2 2.6 21 5.3
Disposals - (0.1) (1.9 (4.5) (6.5)
At 31 March 2008 a1 07 124 70 23.2
Net book value at 31 March 2003 18.8 2.0 131 3.0 36.9

The Company owned no 1angible fixed assels at 31 March 2009 (2008: nil).

During the year, the Company reviewed the useful economic life of fixed assels. As a cansequence il was decided 1o amend the useful economic life of certain
computer equipment resulting in a nel £0.2m reduction in the depreciation charge for the year,
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14 Assets held under finance leases
Assets held under finance leases have the foltowing net book value:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

2009 2008
£m £m
5.4 54

{2.4) (1.6)
3.0 38

Included in assets held under finance leases are plani and equipment with a net book valug of £2.8m (2008: £3.4m) and computer software of £0.2m (2008:

£0.4m).

The majority of the leases are for an initial contraciuat period of 7 years, with options to renew for varying further perieds at lixed rates. The inlerest fate inherent

in the lease is fixed at the contract date for the term of the lease.

15 Investments
Company
Fixed asset investments
pust of investments in subsidiaries
At 1 April

Incraase in investments in subsidiaries - share-based payments
At 31 March

Rygregate impairment
At 1 April and 31 March

Net book amount as at 31 March

A list of the principal subsidiary undertakings is given in note 33.

16 Inventories

Fuel stock

The Group consumed £11.7m (2008: £10.7m) of inventories during the year,
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

17 Trade and other receivables

Group

2009 2008

£m £m

Trade receivables 50.4 55.8

less: provision for impairment (0.6} 0.9

Trade receivables, net of provisions for impairment 49.8 55.1
Amounts due from subsidiary underiakings -

Other gentors 01 0.1

Pigpaymenis and accrued income 3.7 43

53.6 59.5
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2009 2008
£m £m
16.1 149
0.6 1.2
16.7 16.1
0.4 0.4
16.3 15.7
2009 2008
£m £m
0.2 0.3
Company

2009 2008
£m £m
94.3 722
94.3 72.2
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Concenirations of credit risk wilh raspect to lrade receivables are fimited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated, with no one customer
accounting for moie 1han 5% of lrade receivables.

Trade receivables thal are neither past due ner impaired are expected to be fully recovered &s there is no recent history of default or any indications that the
debtors wilt not meet iheir payment obligations. At the year end ihere are no lrade receivables {2008: none} whose terms have been renegoliated and would
otherwise be past due or impaired.

Impaired receivables mainly relzie lo deblors in financial difficulty where defaults in payments have occurred, liability for payment is disputed, or deblors have
entered into bankruptcy. Trade receivables are imgaired when there is ab)ective evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect alt amounts due accarding
10 the original lerms. However, the Group expects a portion of these receivables 1o be recgvered. The madmum exposuse to credit risk at the reporting date is
fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

The Group does ngt hold any coflateral as securily and no assets have been acquired through the exercise of any collateral previously held,

The Group's frade receivables are stated after allowances for bad and doubtful debts, an analysis of which is as fotlows:

2009 2008
£fm £m
ALt April 0.7 0.8
Amount ulilised through adminisirative expenses 0.3) {0.2)
Amount ¢harged through administrative expenses 0.2 0.1
Al 31 March 0.6 0.7
As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as foflows:
2009 2008
fm £m
Less than 30 days 49.4 54.0
Between 30 - 60 days 0.5 1.1
Between 60 - 90 days 0.2 0.2
Moie than 90 days (0.3) (0.2)
49.8 551

As at 31 Match 2009, trade receivabtes of £0.7m (2008: £0.8m) were impaired. The amounl of provision was £0.6m at 31 March 2009 (2008: £0.7m). The
ageing of these impaired trace receivables past their due date is as foliows:

2008 2008
£m £fm
Less than 30 days 0.3 0.2
Between 30 - 60 days 0.1 0.1
Between 60 - 90 days - 0.1
More than 90 days 4.3 0.4
0.7 0.8
As al 31 March 2009, frade receivables of £6.6m (2008: £11.8m) were past due but not impaired. The ageing of these trade receivables past their due date is
as follows:
2009 2008
£m £m
Less than 30 days 6.3 10.7
Between 30 - 60 days 0.5 1.1
Between 60 - 90 days 0.1 0.2
More 1han 90 days {0.3) {0.2)
6.6 11.8

At 31 March 2009, there were £nil (2008: £nil) trade receivables impaired bui not past due for payment.
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The Group's franchise receivables are stated after allowances for bad and coubtiul debts, an analysis of which is as follows:

2009 2008

£m £m

At Agiil 0.2 1.3
Amouat charged through administrative expenses - -

Utilised during the period {0.1) (1.1)

Al 31 March 0.1 0.2

The franchise provision represents a 100% provision agains! all ouistanding franchise debt.

None (2008: none} of the other classes of financial assets within irace and ofher receivables contain impaired assels.
Company

Amounls due from subsidiary undertakings do not bear interest, and are repayable on demand,

None (2008: nane) ¢f the Company's trade and other receivables were past due at the year end and the Company daes not consider it necessary 1o provide for
any impairments,

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m fm m
Cash at bank and in hand 18.0 16.4 16.1 0.2

The effective interest rate an the cash and bank batances was approximately 3.1% {2008: 4.8%), accruing on a daily basis,

Cash and cash eguivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement:

Group Campany
2009 2008 2009 2008
fm fm £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 18.0 16.4 16.1 0.2
19 Trade and other payables - current
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m tm
Trade pavables 21.2 326 0.1 -
Gther payables 1.5 0.4 - -
Amounts owed to franchises 1.7 1.5 - -
Amounts owed lo subsidiary undertzkings - - 91.4 50.6
Other faxes and socizl securily payable 1.9 4.3 - -
Accruals 14.3 10.7 - -
Delferred income 0.2 19 - -
52.8 56.4 97.5 50.6

Amounts owed 10 subsidiary undertakings do not bear interest, and ase repayable on demand.
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20 Borrowings

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm fm £m
Current
Amaounts due within one year or on demand:
Sterling term loan {unsecured) 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Finance lease obligations {see nole 26} 0.7 0.7 - -
1.7 1.7 1.0 1.0
Non-current
Amounts due after one year:
Sterling term Joan {unsecured) 1.0 5.0 4.0 5.0
Finance lease obligations (see nole 26) 2.8 35 - -
6.8 8.5 4.0 5.0

The term Yaan, whilst unsecured, is guaranteed by subsidiaries of Business Post Group plc and is repayable in equal annual irstaliments of £1m,

Interest on Ihe 1erm loan is reset every month (2008: quarter). As at 31 March 2009 the effective rale of interest on the term loan was approximately 2.5% {2008:

6.2%). The loan is subject to various covenants.

The minimum Jease payments under finance leases fall due as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Less than 1 year 0.9 09 - -
Between 1 and 5 years 341 36 - -
QOver 5 years - 0.4 - -
Total minimum lease payments 4.0 49 . -
Fulure finance charges {0.5) (0.7) - -
Present value of finance leases 3.5 42 -
21 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on fempaorary differences under the tiability methad using a tax rate of 28% (2008: 28%).
The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:
Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
Deferred tax account £m fm €m £m
At1 Aprll (0.5) (0.5) - -
tncome statement (charge)/credit (2.1) 0.1 - -
{Charged)/credited to equity - (0.1} - -
At 31 March (2.6} {0.5} - -

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.

Group
2009 2008
Deferred tax assets £m fm
At 1 April 0.5 -
Income statement credil/(charge) 0.2 06
{Charged)/credited to equity - 0.1)
At 31 March 0.7 05

Company

2009 2008
£m m
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Deferred tax assels, relating lo share based paymenis, are calculated on the difference between the market price at the balance sheei dale and the option
exercise price. The excess of the deferied tax over the cumulative income stalement charge is recagnised in equity.

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assels.

The movemer on the deferred tax fiability account is as shown below:

Group Campany
2009 2008 2009 2008
Deterred tax liabilities fm £m £m £m
At 1 April 1.0 0.5 - -
Income statement charge/(credit) 2.4 0.5 - -
At 31 March 3.4 1.0 - -

Deferred tax liabilities on accelerated capilal allowances are calcufated on the difference between the accouniing net book vatue of the assets and their carrying
amount {or {ax purposes.

The 2008 Finance Act included provisions io phase out Industrial Building Atlowances qver 2 period of 4 years to 31 March 2011. This has resultec in a one-
off deferred tax charge to the income statement of £2.2m {2008: £nil).

The deferred incame tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is as follows:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m fm

Deferred tax on share-baset payments - {0.1) - .-

Provisions

Properties Claims Tolals

£m E€m £m

At 1 April 2008 1.5 0.1 1.6

Utilised in the year {0.4) (0.1} {0.5)

At 31 March 2009 1.1 - 1.4
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-curreni as foliows:

2009 2008

Em £m

Current 0.6 1.2

Non-current 0.5 04

1.1 1.6

Propertles

The provision for property Ieases relates 1o dilapidations on properties under leases expiring within 1 year and up to 17 years. The properties have been
inspecled by the Group Property Manager, and estimates made for the anticipaled dilapidation expenditure to be incurred prior 1o sub-letting, or reversion of
ihe lgase.

As al 31 March 2008, the Group held leases over iwo vacan! properies. Provision was made for rentals due during the anticipated lime thal those properlies
were on the market. During the year ended 31 March 2009, the leases on these properties have expired, and 1he Group no longer retains an inierest in these
sites.

Claims

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group provided £0.1m in sespect of a number of legat actions, which have subsequently been settled in this financial
year.
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Calied up share capital

Group and Company 2009 2008
£m £m

Authorised

70,000,000 (2008: 70,000,000) ordinary shares of 0p each 7.0 7.0

Issued, allotted and fully paid

2009 2008
Ordinary shares of 10p each Shares £m Shares £m
AL 1 April 54,674,237 5.5 54,595,602 5.9
Allotted under share option schemes - - 78,735 -
At 31 March 54,674,237 5.5 54,674,237 55

Potential issues of ordinary shares
Certain employees and franchisees hold options 1o subscribe for shares in the Company al prices ranging from Nil 1o 496p under six share oplion schemes
appraved by shareholders between 2001 ang 2008, as follows;

Year of Exercise Exercise 2009 2008

Scheme grant price period Numbers Numbers
Sharesave scheme 2004 - 2008 360p-486p  01.08.091001.03.12 362,295 315,268
New executive 2001 share option scheme 2001 - 2002 364p-418p  05.12.041031.05.12 79,360 80,626
Franchise option scheme 2002 2002 380p 12.07.051012.07.12 19,735 19,735
P 2005 - 2007 Nit  17.07.091003.12.17 734,826 1,065,435
One-off senior executive award 2006 Nil  23.05.0910 23.06.09 220,000 220,000
Share maiching plan 2004 - 2008 Mil 15110910 04.12.11 61,534 49.917
1,477,750 1,761,041

Employee share ownership trust

The Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust hotds shares in the Company for subsequen transfer to employees under the Long Term Incentive Pfan. Shares
held by the Trust are not voted at shareholder meetings and do nol accrue dividends. Al 31 March 2009, the frusi held a total of 624,817 shares (2008: 624,817
shares). All other shares carry voling rights and accrue dividends.

No shares were purchased, sold or transferred during the year. In 2008, 210,565 ordinary shares of 10p were purchased by the Trust at an average cost of £4.75,
funded by a cash coniribution from the Company.

Share-based payments

In order to align the interests of employees and franchisees with thase of shareholders, share optiens are awarded 1o both employees and franchisees under
discretionary share incentive plans, and employees under all-empioyee share plans, as follows:

Employee share option scheme

Awaids under the employee share option scheme were made between 1993 and 2000, exercisable within 3 - 10 years of the grant date. Exercise of an option
is subject to confinued empfoyment, with settlement in the farm of shares.

Sharesave plan

The Company has oftered a SAYE share plan since 1996 to eligit’e employees, inctuding directors, The plan is an Intand Revenue approved all-employee share
plan. The Inland Revenue does not permit performance conditions to be attached lo the exercise of options. Under the plan, parlicipants are granted options
over the Company's shares. Each parlicipant may save up to £25G per month te purchase shares in the Company at a discount. For the 2008 grant, the discouni
was 20% of the market value at the lime the option was granied.

New executive 2001 share oplion scheme

Awards were made under an executive share oplion schemne between 2001 and 2003 to emplayees at senior management level and above, exercisable within 3 - 10 years
of the grant date. Options were granted with a lixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under option at the dale of the grani,

Options granted under the execulive share option scheme are exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subject 1o the condition that the growih
in the Company's eamings per share exceeds the increase in the index of retail prices from the date of grant by mare than 3% p.a.

Additionally, exercise of an option is subject to continued employment, with setilement in the form of shares.
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Franchise share oplion scheme

The franchise share option scheme was introduced in 2002. Under the scheme the Remuneration Commitiee can grant options over shares in the Company 1o
franchises of the Company. Options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal 1o the markel price of the shares under option at the date of the grant. The
contractual life of an option is 3 - 10 years. Awards under the scheme are generally reserved lor franchisees who have mel gperational pesformance criteria in
the year prior to the award and currenlly There are 2 franchises participating.

Optians granted under Ihe franchisee share option scheme are exercisable on the third anniversary of the dale of grant, subject fo the condition that the growih
in the Campany's earnings per share exceeds the increase in the index of retail prices from the date of grant by more than 3% p.a.

Additionaly, exercise of an oplion is subject to a continued franchisee relationship, with settlement in the form of shares.
Long term incentive plan ("LTIP"}

Foltowing a detision by the remuneraticn commitiee an LTIP was introduced in 2004, as a more effective means of incentivising the Campany's senior
managemen than the execulive share option scheme, Under the LTIP the Remuneralion Commitiee can granl options over sharss in the Company to employees
of the Company, with a contractual life of an option being 3 - 10 years,

2005 Awards

Awards may be exercised determined primarily by reference to Ihe Company's Total Shareholder Return (“TSR*) performance over a period of 3 years. Under
this condition, the Company's TSR is measurad against the TSR of 2ll the other companies in the Support Services sector listed in the FTSE All Share Index at
the start of the financial year in which an award is granted over a period of 3 financial years. The proportion of the award which may be exercised depends upon
the ranking ¢f the Company's TSR, whereby 10% of shares may be exercised if the Company achieves median ranking, rising pro-rata 1o 100% if the Company's
ranking falls within the 1op 10%. No shares are exercisahle if the Company's rankirg is below the median.

The exercise of awards is also subject to the condilion that the growth in the Company's earnings per share shall exceed the increase in the index of retail prices
fram the date of grant by mose than 3% p.a.

Additionally, exercise of an option is subjec! to continued employment, with setilement in the form of shares.
2006 and 2007 awards

{n arder 1o provide the Remuneration Committee with {exibilily to offer competitive awards to senior executives, sharsholder approvat was sought ang granted
al the Annuat General Meeting held on 11 July 2006 to amend the performance conditions applying to all future LTIP awards.

40% of an Award is subject 1o a performance conditien based on the annual earnings per share (EPS) growth. For the awards in 2007, 25% (of the 40%) will
vest for grawth of 15% p.a. over the three year period from 2007 o 2010, with 100% vesting for growth of 20% p.a. over that period.

60% of an award is determined by the TSR performance of the Company relative to all the other companies in the FTSE All Share Index (excluding lnvestment
Trusts) at the start of the financial year in which an award is granted over a period of 3 linancial years. The proportion of the award which may be exercised
depends upon {he ranking of the Company's TSR, whereby 25% {of the 60%) of shares may be exercised if the Company achieves median ranking, rising pro-
tata to 100% if the Company's ranking falls within the top quartile. No shares are exetcisable if \ne Company's ranking is below the median.

One-off senior executive award

Fallawing a recommendation of the Remuneration Commitiee, and subsequent shareholder approval al the Annual General Meeting hetd on 11 July 2006, a
one-off award was macte of over 220,000 shares to the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director. The performance conditions attached 10 these awards were
designed to incentivise and reward fhe achievement of exacting perfarmance criteria, above and beyond thase required under the normal LTIR Specifically, the
extent fo which these awards will vest will be determined by the Company's EPS in 2009 retative 10 the budgeted EPS lor 2007,

The awards witl begin to ves for EPS growih in excess of 15% p.a. pro-rata fo 100% vesting for growth of 20% p.a.. Additionally the targels are expressed as
growlh from the budgeted 2007 EPS figure {rather than the Actual 2006 result) in order 1o ensure that the targets are more challenging than those under the
LTIP This cendition means $hat the minimum EPS value required in 2009 for these awards 1o vest is higher than the EPS value required in thal year lor the
maximum LTIP award to vest.

The base for these awards was amended in 2008 ta take account of the loss of the Federal Exprass contract. The targels for this scheme remain more demanding
Ihan those for the normal LTIP scheme.
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Share matching plan ("SMP")

In 2004 the Remungration Committee introduced 2 SMP designed to further align the interests of certain invited executives to long-tesm sharehotders. Under
the rules, selected execulives may be invited fo invest a proportion of their cash bonus in 1he acquisition of Company shaies up to 25% of their pre-lax salary.
Whera such an investment is made, the executives will receive & gran! of a matching award over shares in the Company wilh an equivalent value, which may
be exercised between 36 and 42 months following the date of granl,

The proportion of the award which may be exercised depends upon the growth in the Company's earnings per share and is subjeci to a minimum growth of 4%
p.a. above the index of retail prices (“RPI") over the three year performance period. One third of the award may be exercised if growth is in excess of RPI growth
by 12% over the period, two thirds if growth is in excess by 15%, and in full if growth exceeds RPI growth by 18% over the period. The awards lapse if the
minimum condition i not achigved al the end of the threg year performance period.

Exercise of an option is subject 1o continued employment, with settlement in ihe form of shares.
Catculation of fair values

For equity-settled share-based transactions, fzir values of share options awarded in the financizl year are measured at the date of grant of the option using a
share pricing oplion medel. Where the model is dependent on the Company's TSR over a period, the Monte Carlo maodsi is used; in all other circumstances
the Black-Scholes model is used. Non-market conditions, such as the Company meeting eamings per share targets, are not incorporaied info the calculation
of fair value at the grant date but are reflecled in the amount of compensalion expense accued over the vesting peried. The expecied life of options depends
on the behaviour of option holders, which is incorpesated info the option model consistent with historic gbservable data.

For cash-setiled share-based transactions, fair values of sharg options awarded in the financial year are measured at each bafance shest date at the fair value
of the liability, with all changes immediately recognised in the Income Stalement. Non-market conditions, such as the Company meeting eamings largets, ase
not incorparated into the calcutation of fair value al dhe grant date bul are reflected in the amount of compensation expense accrued over the vesting period.
The expected life of options is determined by reference 1o the contractual terms.

The fair vatues calcutated are inherently subjective and uncerain due o the assumpliens made and the limilations of the option-pricing model used. The
significant assumptions used 1o estimate the fair value of the options gianted in the financial year are as follows:

Share

Maltching
Plan SAYE
Grant date 03/06/08 18/07/08
Share price at grant dale £3.19 £2.90
Exercise price - £2.49
Number of employees 3 166
Number of shares granted 11,617 247,478
Vesting period (years) 3 3
Expected votaility - 44.0%
Option life (years) 3 3
Expected life {years) 3 3
Risk free interest rate 4.96% 5.04%
Expecied dividends expressed as a dividend yield 4.0% 40%
Fair value per oplion £2.82 £0.92
Expecied forteiture (%) 0.0% 30.0%

The risk-free rate was determinad from Ihe UK gilts zero-coupon yield curve, The expected volatility is estimated by considering the Company's historic average
share price veolalifity over similar periods to the expected life of the option under consideration. In addition, the expected dividend yield was based at the
prevaiting rates at each of ihe granis. A reconciliation of option movements over the year to 31 March 2009 is shown on the following page.
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2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
2008 eXercise 2008 exercise
Number price Number price
Cutstanding as at 1 April 1,761,041 £0.94 1,655,627 £1.42
Granted 259,085 £2.38 735,451 £0.81
Forfeited (542,386) £1.44 (553,670) £1.80
Exercised - - (76,367) £3.98
Cuistanding as at 31 March 1,477,190 £1.0 1,761,041 £0.94
Exercisable at 31 March 99,095 £4.06 110,361 £4.07
Optigns are exercisable as follows:
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Weighted remaining  remaining Weighted remaining femaining
average lite lite average lite life
Range of exercise Number gxpected  contracted gxercise  Number expacted ¢ontracted
exercise prices price of shares years years price  of shares years years
£0.00 - £0.99 £0.00 1,015,360 0.8 5.8 £0.00 1335412 1% 7.1
£1.00 - £1.99 - - - - - - - -
£2.00 - £2.9% £2.49 210,333 2.7 29 - - - -
£3.00 - £3.9% £3.68 173,387 1.5 1.9 £3.66 300,727 23 29
£4.00 - £4.0¢ £4.24 77,670 1.6 34 £4.45 124,902 038 3.2

No options were exercised during the year. The weighted average share price during the year for options exercised during ihe year ended 31 March 2008 was
£4.61. The lotal charge fer the year relating to employee share-based payments was £1.0m (2008: £1.3m), £0.9m (2008: £1.1m) of which related to equity-
settled share-based payment fransactions and £0.1m (2008: £0.2m) lo cash-setiled share-based transactions. Afier deferred tax, the net charge was £0.9m

(2008: £1.1m).

25 Reconclllation of profit to net cash flow generated from operations

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

fm fm Em £m

Profit/{loss) for the year 9.3 97 1.4 {0.3)
Taxation 14 4.5 {0.1) (0.1
Finance costs payable 0.5 0.7 0.4 0.4
Finance income receivable (0.3} (0.4} (0.3} (0.3)
Exceptional items 11 - . -
Depreciation and amartisation 59 59 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assels 0.2 - -
Share-based payments 1.0 1.3 -
Decrease/(increase) in invenlories 0.1 {3.1) - -
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables 5.9 (3.3) (21.9) {20.7)
(Decrease)/increasa in trade and other payables (4.8} 7.2 46.9 24.3
{Decrease)/increase in provisions (0.4} 0.2 - -
Net cash flow generated from operations 25.6 25.7 26.4 3.3
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26 Derivatives and other financial instruments

Short term recefvables and payables

Shorl term debtars and creditors have been excluded, as managemeni consider the fair value to be the same as the book value.

Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities

The interest risk profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 March 2009 was:

2009 2008
Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate
Book value {inancizl finangial Book value financial financial
total labilities liabilities total Hiabilities Total
£fm £m fm £m fm £m
Finance leases 35 35 - 42 42 -
Term loan 5.0 5.0 8.0 - 8.0
Provisions 11 141 1.6 - 1.6
9.6 3.5 6.1 11.8 4.2 7.6

The interest rate on the term loan is based on a {lcating rate linked to ihe London tater Bank QOffer Rate (“LIBOR").

All tinancial liabilities are sterling denominated.

All the Group's creditos falling dug within one year (other than bank and other borrowings) are excluded from the above table either due to ihe exclusion of
short term ilems or because ihey do not meet the definition of a financial liabitity, such as tax batances.

Maturity profile of financial liabllities

The matusity profile of ihe carrying amouat of the Group’s non-current linancial liabilities ai the end of the year was as follows:

2009 2008

Other Other

Group financial Group finangial
debt liabilities Totat debt liabilities Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Between gne and two years 1.0 0.8 1.8 1.0 0.8 1.8
Between two and five years 3.0 2.2 5.2 30 25 5.5
Aller five years - 0.3 0.3 1.0 0.6 1.6
4.0 3.3 7.3 5.0 39 8.9

Qther finangial lfabilities comprise finance leases {note 20) and provisions {ncie 22). Credilors due wilhin one year are excluded from the above lable as they

are of a short term nature.
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Borrowing facilities
The Group has ungrawn borawing facilities of £5m (2008: £12m). These facilities ara in place undil 31 December 2009,
Fair value of finangial assets and liabllities

The fellowing iable provides a comparison by calegary of the carrying amaunts and Rir values of the Group's financial assets and liabililies at 31 March 2009
and 2008. Fair value is the amount at which a financial insirument could be exchanged in an arm's fenglh transaction beiween informed and willing parties,
other than a forced or liquidation sale and excludes accrued interest, Where available, market values have been used to determing fair values. Where market
values are not available, fair valugs have been calculated by discounting expecled cash flows al prevailing interest rates. Sel out below is a summary of the
metheds and assumptions used for each calegory of financial insirument.

200% 2008
Book value Fair value Book valug Fair value
£m £m £m m

Primary financial instrument held or Issued to finance the
Group's operations:
Short term borawings {1.0) (1.0) {1.0) (1.0}
Long lerm barrowings (4.0) (4.0) (5.0 {5.0)
Finance leases (3.5} (3.4) {4.2) (4.0}
Cash a1 bank and in hand 18.0 18.0 16.4 16.4
Summary of methods and assumptions
Long 1erm borrowings The 1air value of he bank loan approximates 1o the value reported in the balance sheet singe it carries

a floating rate where payments are resel ta market rates at intervals Jess than one year.
Finance leases Fair value is based by discounting the cash flows at prevailing interest rates.
Financia! instruments held for trading purposes
The Group does noi irade in financial instruments.
Currency analysis of menetary net assets
The caly monetary assels or liabilities that are denominated in a foreign cusrency are eura bank account balances of Enil (2008; £19,000).
Credit quality of financial assets

The credit risk on shorl-term deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by recognised intemational credit-rating
agencies.
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Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments
Group Group
2009 2008
Vehicles, Vehicles,
Land and plant and Land and plant and
buildings gquipment buildings equipment
)] £m £m £€m
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring:
Within one year 03 1.5 05 1.8
Later than one year and less than five years 6.2 9.5 6.6 8.7
Alter five years 15.1 8.4 6.0 7.3
At 31 March 21.6 19.4 231 17.8

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable operaling lease agreerments. The leases have various 1erms, escalation clzuses and renewal rights.
The Group also leases vehicles and office equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.

The Company had ng operating (ease cammitments during the year (2008: Enil).
The tofal future sub-lease payments receivable relaling 1o the above operating leases amounted to Enil (2008: Enil).
Contingent liabllities

The Company has guaranieed hank and other borrowings of subsidiary undettakings in a cress-guarantee agreement on an undrawn Group borrowing facility
amounting 1o £3m (2008: £12m}.

Capital and other financial commitments
Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Coniracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financiat statements 0.2 0.5
Analysis of net {debt)/cash
Group
At 1 April Al April At 31 March
2007 Cash Flow Other 2008 Cash Flow Other 2009
fm £m m m m m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 12.0 4.4 - 16.4 1.6 - 18.0
12.0 4.4 - 16.4 15 - 18.0
ekt due within one year (1.0} 1.0 (1.0 (1.0} 1.0 (t.0) (1.0)
Debt due alter one year (6.0) - 1.0 (5.0) - 1.0 (4.0)
Finance leases {(4.9) 0.7 . (4.2) 0.7 - (3.5)
(11.9) 1.7 - (10.2) 1.7 - (8.5)
Net cash/(debt) 0.1 6.1 - 6.2 33 - 9.5
Company
Al 1 April At 1 April At 31 March
2007 Cash Flow Other 2008 Cash Flow Other 2009
£m m fm tm £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand a0 (7.8} - 0.2 159 - 16.1
8.0 {7.8) - 0.2 159 - 16.1
Debil due within one year (1.0 10 1.m (1.0) 10 (1.0) (1.0)
Debt due afler one year {6.0) - 1.0 {5.0) - 1.0 (4.8)
(7.0) 1.0 - {6.0) 14 - (5.0)
Net cash/(debt) 1.0 {6.8) - (5.8} 16.9 - 11.1
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Related party transactions

P Kane, a director of the company, and members of his close family and certain family trusts, the beneficiaries of which are persons conngcted with P Kane,
contigl directly and indirectly 45.8% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition, his brother M Kane controls a further 12.8% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Key managemeni compensalion is disclosed in nole 6.
The halances outstanding a1 31 March 2009 between the Company and ofher Group companies were as follows:

2009 2008
fm fm

Current
Amounds due from subsidiary undertakings 943 72.2
Amounts owed 10 subsidiary undertakings (97.4) {50.6)

Movements in these balances largely comprise of inter-company funding.

Post balance sheet events

The direclors are prapesing a final dividend in respect of the fimancial year ending 31 March 2009 of 10.8p per share, which if approved will be paid on 14
August 2009 io shareholders who are an the register of members ¢a 24 July 2009,

Principal subsidiaries
The Company has the follawing pringipal wholly owned trading subsidiaries, all operating within the UK:

Percentage of

naminat vatue

of ordinary

Country of shares held by

Subsidiary Nature of business incorporation ihe Group
Business Post Ltd Parcel and express mail collection and delivery services England 100%
UK tait Lid Collection and delivery of business mail England 100%
UK Pallets Lid Collection and delivery services for palletised goods England 100%

The Company holds 100% af the voting righis of each of the above subsidiaries.

The financial results of all of the subsiciaries listed above are included within the consolidated report and accounts.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group's accounting policies are set oul in note 1 to these finarcial stalements. Management is required io exercise significant jucdgement in the application
of these policies. Areas which management believes require the most crilical accounting judgements are as follows (apart from hose policies involving
estimalion which are outlined in (b} belowy).

a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
Exceptional items

The Directors consider that items of income or expense which are material by virtue of their nature and amount should be disclosed separalely if the finzncial
slaternents are {o fairly present the tinancial performance ot the Group, The Qirectors label these items collectively as 'excentional items..

Determining which lransactions are 1o be cansidered exceplional is often a subjective maiter. However, circumstances that the Directors believe would give rise
to exceptionat ilems, requiring separate disclosure would include;

(i) loss or cessation of a malerial contract representing 5% or more of the Group's revenues;

{ii) disposal of fixed assels where the peofil or loss represents 5% or more of the Group's profit before iax;
(iii) disposal of investments;

(iv) organisational or restruciuring programmes,

Leases

In determining whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease, management is required to evaluale where \he substantial risks ang rewards reside.
Where management conclude thal the arrangement conshitutes a finance lease, 1hen il is necessary to both calculate the praportion of the payment which should
be treated as finance cost and capital repayment, and to judge the likely period of use at the inception of the agreement.

b} Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Useful economic lives ol property, plant and equipment

Depraciation of property, plant and equipment is charged so as to write down the value of those assets fo their residual value over their respective useful lives.
The Direclors are required o assess both the uselul economic lives of the assets so that depreciation is charged on a systematic and proporiionate basis, and
the prebable residual values.

Recoverahility of trade and franchise receivables

Trade and franchise receivables are recorded net of pravisions for bad debis and credit notes. In evaluating the required provision, the Directors consider debtor
specific circumstances, in addition to historicat frends,

Geodwill impalrment

Goodwill impairment is tested for at least annually, by calculating the estimated recoverable amount from each cash gengrating unit {CGUY on a value-in-use
basis. In perferming the test management needs to assess and consider;

(i) the likely sales and cost growth assumptlions used by the CGU;

{ii) the sector specific shori- and long-term growth rates, as well as that in the UK economy as a whole;
{iiii) the pre-tax discount rate applicable to ihe Company.

Provisions

The Group has provided for the estimaled cost of making good properties on cessation of the lease. This requives ihe Direclors Lo make an assessment of the
polential cost of the work as at the reporting dale. However, these costs will not be immediately incurred and on an ongoing basis, the Group maintains ils
properties through a programme of repair and renewal which may result in changes required in the cairying vatue of these provisions.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's overall objeclive when managing financial risk is to safeguard ils ability o continue as a going concern in order fo provide retums for sharehelders
and benefils to other stakeholders. To this end, the Group seeks fo ulilise nel debt as pari of the long {erm capital structure, both through bank and lease
financing.

Risks are inherent in the use of debt capital, including inferest rate risk. Additionally the Group is roulinely exposed lo 2 number of ather financiat risks, the
most significant of which include credit risk on trade receivables, regulatory risk and price risk. These are discussed below.

Risk managament is carried cut by a cenlral treasury function under written policies approved by the Board, Under the supervision of the Group Finance Director,
the Group Treasury lunction identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operalion with the operating divisions,

The use of simple financial derivalives is considered in order to hedge specific financial risks where cost effective to 4o so. The Group does not enter inta, or
lrade, financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk

QOverall, since Lhe vast majority of the Group's activities are provided to UK businesses, the fortunes of the Group are linked to the general health of the UK
economy. The Group's exposure is limiled by being spread across a wide range of customers. No single customer acceunts for mose than 5% of revenue.
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Credit risk

Credil risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, as well as credit exposures ta frade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents held by ihe Group includa bank balances and short term deposits with a maturity of ane week or less. The credit risk on these liquid
funds is limited because in all cases ihe counterparties are banks with high credit ratings confirmed by international tredit-rating agenties.

The Graup has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has implemenled policies that require appropriate credil checks on potential customers
before sales commence and sirict credit control of outstanding amounts. Trade credit insurance is employed {0 proteci any significant exposure 10 bad debts.

Regulatory risk
The UK mai} market is regulated by the Poslal Services Commission ('Posicomm'), under the Postal Services Acl 2000. Their key job is to ensure thai licensed

postal aperators, including Royal Mail meef the needs of their customers throughout the UK, As such, they have responsitility for licensing postal operalars
{for mail costing fess than £1 to deliver and weighing less than 350 grams), and for ensuring that competition exists in the mail market.

On 16 December 2008 1he Independeni Review of the Postal Services Seclor in he UK (‘ihe Hooper Review) published its findings and recommendations,
which the Government accepted in full. The resultant Postat Services Bill 2009 includes proviston for the transier of regulziory responsibility for postal services
to Ofcom, and the subsequent abolition of Postcomm at some point in the 2009710 business year. Until the Pastal Senices Bill receives Royal Ascent, and
responsibility is vesled in Qfcom, Poslcomm remains responsible for postal regutation,

Price risk

Fuel is a significant cost to the Group, althaugh it constitutes less thar 4% of total costs. Price risk is minimised as significant increases in the fuel price can
be passed onlo customers via a fugl surcharge mechanism common throughout the express delivery industry.

The Group has both interest-bearing assels and interest-bearing liabilities. As at the balance sheet date these largely comprise of the following:

2009 2008
Assel/liabitity Interest accrues on: fm £m
Cash at bank and in hand Floating rate linked fo base rates 18.0 16.4
Bank loan Ftoating rate linked ta LIBOR (5.0} (6.0)
Finance leases Fixed rate al inception ol the lease (3.5} (4.2)

The reported results would not have been materially different had market interest rates been 0.5% adverse/favourable thioughoul the financial year, with all
other variables hefd constant.
Liquidity risk

The Group's husiness activilies, logether with the factors fikely to affect its luture development, performance and position are set qut in the Business Review on
pages 4 to 11. The financia! position of the Group, is cash flaws, liquidity position and treasury risk management approach are described in the Financial
Overview on pages 1210 15, and its barrowing facilities detailed in note 26.

The Board reviews both the long and short-ierm financing requirements of the Group o ensure that there are sufficient avaitable Tunds both for the day-to-day
operatians of the Group and for planned capilal investmenls. The Group has considerable financial resources together with long-ferm contracls with a number
of custormers and suppliers across different geographic areas and industries, As a consequence, the directors befieve thal the Group is well placed lo manage
its business risks successiully despite the curren! economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the direciors have a reasonable expectation thal the Company and the Group have adequate resources 1o continue in operational
existence for the fareseeable tuture. Accordingly, they continue 1o adopt the geing concern basis in preparing the annual repori and accounts.

At the year end, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of £5m under a facilily expiring 31 December 2009.
Capital risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are 10 safeqguard the Group's ability to continug as a going concern in arder to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for ather stakeholders and 1o maintain an optimal capital struciure 1o reduce the long-lerm cast of capital.

In order to maintain of adjust he capital struciure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharehatders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares ar sell assets to reduce debl.
Foreign exchange risk

The Group is not significantly exposed to the effects of fluctuations in exchange rales since all incorme is in slerling and costs denaminated in forgign currency
tepresent less than 0.1% of all expendilure.
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Five Year Summary of Results

IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS

2008 2008" 2007 2006 2005

£m fm £m £m £m

Revenue 385.7 358.6 3256 278.2 2333
Cost of sales {332.4) (310.5) (275.8) {2314 {184.7)
Gross profit 53.3 48.1 50.0 46.8 48.6
Administrative expenses (36.7) (33.6) (39.6) {41.7) {28.7)
Operating profit 16.6 145 104 5.1 199
et finance costs (9.2) (0.3) {0.6) (0.4) {0.3)
Profit on ordinary aclivities before faxation 16.4 14.2 9.8 4.7 19.6
Taxalion 7.1 (4.5) 2.9 (1.3 {5.9)

Profit fot the financial year 93 9.7 89 34 137
Earnings per share - basic 17.1p 18.0p 12.8p 6.4p 25.6p
Divigends per share 17.2p 17.2p 17.2p 1%.2p 18.5p

The calculation of earnings per share for the five years ended 31 March 2009 is based on the fatlowing weighled numbers of shares in issue:

31 March 2009 54,049,420
31 March 2008 54,066,346
31 Masch 2007 54,150,544
31 March 2006 53,962,493
31 March 2005 53,586,502

“restated - see nole 5
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Business Post Group Plc will be held af Investec, 2 Gresham Streel, London EC2V 7QP on 15 July 2009
for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing the fallowing resolutions of which Resalutions § ta 9 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and
Resoluiions 10 ta 13 will be proposed as special resolutions.

Ordinary business

1 To receive and acopt the directors’ Annual Report and Accounts and the auditor's report therzon for the year ended 31 March 2009, Resolution 1

2 To geclare a final dividend of $0.8p net per ardinary share (or the year ended 31 March 2009, payable to shareheiders on 14 Augus! 2009 Resolution 2
who arg on the register on 24 July 2009.

3 To appiove the remuneration report of the direclors. Resolution 3
4 Tore-elect Guy Buswell as a director. Resolution 4
5 Tore-elect Peter Kane as a director. Resolution 5
6 Tore-elect Trevar Jenking as a direclor. Resolution 6
7 To re-appoint the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and to authorise ihe direciors 1o determine ihe audilers’ remuneralion. Resolution 7

Special business

8 That:

Resolution 8

the rules of the Business Past Group Plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 (the “LTIP 20097) referred ta in the Directors” Report and produced in draft to this meeling
and, for the purposes of igentificatton, initialled by the Chairman, be approved and the Directors be autharised to make such modifications to the LTIP 2009 as
they may consider appropriate for the implementation of the LTIP 2009 and lo adopt the LTIP 2009 as so modified and 1o do all such other acts and things as
they may consider appropriate to implement the LTIP 2008.

§ That

a1

9.2

10 That:
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Resolution 9

the directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally avthorised for the purposes of section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act") to
exercise all the powers of ihe Company lo allot relevant securilies (within the meaning of section 80{2) of the Act) up to a maximum aggregate nominal
amount ¢f £1,532,576 provided that this authority shall (unless previously revoked or varied by the Company in generaf meeting) expire at the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company afer the passing of this resolution save that the Company may before such expiry make an oifer or
agreement which would or might require relevant securities 1o be allofted after such expiry and the directors may atlot relevani securities in pursuance
of such an offer or agreement as if the authority eonferred hereby had not expired; and

the authority hereby conferred upon the directors replaces the autharity conterred upon the directors pursuant e the resolution passed by shareholders of
the Company on 9 July 2008 provided that such replacement shall net have retrospective effect.

Resolution 10

the directors be and they are hereby empaowerad to allot equity securities {within 1he meaning of section 94 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”)
wholly for cash pursuani fo the authorily conferred on ihe directors by resolution 9 contzined in the noiice of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company of which this resolution forms part as if sub-section (1) of seclion 83 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this power
shatl be limited to;

1011 the zllotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue open offer or atherwise in favour of ordinary sharehalders where the equity
securities respectively attributable to the interests of ail ordinary sharehelders are propartionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective number
of ordinary shares held by them and for the purposes of this resolution “rights issue™ means an offer of equity securilies open for acceptance
for & period fixed by the directors 1g:

() holders on the register an a fixed recosd dale of ordinary shares in proporiion lo their respeclive holdings; and

{b) holders on the register on a fixed record date of other equity securilies to the extent expressly required ¢r {if considered appropriate by
ihe directars) permitted by the righls attached thereio;

but subject to such exclusions or other anangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in redalion 10 fractional entitlements

or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of, any regulatary body or any stock

10.1.2  the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 10.1.1 above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal value of £273,371;

and shall {unless previously revcked or varied by the Company in general meeting) expire on the earlier of 9 October 2010 or the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company after 1he passing of this resotution save ihat the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement
which would or might require equity securities to be allotied after such expiry and the direclors may allot equity securities in pursuance af such offer or
agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired; and

all authorities conferred under section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 prior to the dale of this Annual General Meeting be and they are hereby revoked
provided ihat such revecation shall not have retrospective effect.
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11 That: Resolution 11

pursuant to Article 9 of the Company's Articles of Association and Section 166 of ihe Companies Acl 1985, the Company be and is hereby authorised to make

market purchases of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company provided ihat:

111 the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 5,467,423,

11,2 the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share is 10 pence per ordinary share which amount shall e exclusive of expenses;

11,3 the maximum price which may be paid for each ordinary share is, in respect of an ordinary share contracied to be purchased en any day, an amount
(exclusive of expenses) equal to 105% of ihe average of the mid-markel quotations for an ardinary share of the Company as derived from the Daily Official
List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is contracled to be purchased,

11.4  the authority hereby conferred shall expire on the earlier of 9 October 2010 or the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after
the date o passing this resalution, unless such autherity is renewed pricr 1o such time; and

11.5  the Company may conclude a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such autherity which will or
may be exercised whelly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may make a purchase of ordinary shares in purstiance of any such contract as if
1he authosity hereby canferred had not expired.

12 That with effect from 00.01 a.m. on 1 October 2009: Resolutlon 12

12.t  the Articles ol Association of the Company be amended by deleting all the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum of Association which, by virlug of
section 28 Companies Act 2006, are 1o be trealed as provisions of the Company's Articles of Associalion; and

122 1he Articles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the meeting fer the purpose of identification be adapted as the
Articles of Associatian of the Gompany in substifution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Arlicles of Asseciation.

13 That a general meeting other than an annual general meefing may be calied an not less than 14 clear days’ nolice. Resolution 13
By order of the Boasd ’
Steven Glew
Company Secretary
20 May 2009
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Notice of Meeting

Notes

1. THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt as fo the aciion you should iake, you should consuli
your stockbroker, bank manager, saliciter, accouniant or other professional adviser authgrised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 immegiataly.

2. It you have sold or transferred all your grdinary shares in Business Posi Group Plc, please send this document and the enclosed form of proxy to the siockbraker,
or other agent through wham ihe sale or iransfer was effecled, far fransmission 10 the purchaser or iransferes.

3. Explanaiory statements relating to special business of the Annual General Meeling are contained in the Direclors” Reparl (under the headings Annual General
Meeting - special business) and in the appendices 10 this Notice of Meeting.

4. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entilled to appoint one or more proxies 1o attend and, on a poli, to vote instead of him,
Such proxy or proxies need not be a member of the Company. Details of how to appoint the chairman of the meeling or another person as yous praxy using the
form of proxy are set out in the notes on the form of proxy. If you wish your proxy 1o speak an your behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your gwn choice
of proxy {nol the chairman) and give your instructions direcily lo them, You may appaint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed 1o exercise rights
attached lo different shares. You may not appoint more than ane proxy 1o exercise rights attached lo any one share. T appoinl more than one praxy, {an) additional
form(s) of proxy may be obizined by contacting Equiniti Limited on 0871 384 2799, Please indicate in the box next ta the proxy holder's name the number of
shares in refation 1o which they are authorised to acl as your proxy. Please also indicate by ticking the box provided if the praxy instruction is one of multiple
instructions being given. All forms must be signed and returned tagether in the same envelope. You can only appoind a proxy using the procedures sel cut in these
notes and the notes 1o the form of proxy.

5. Aqeply paid form of proxy is provided. To be effective, a form of proxy must be completed, signed and (fogethes with the original or a notarially certified copy of
any power of attomey or other authority under which il is executed) lodged at the Company's registrars, Equiniti Limiled, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex, BN99 6DA not laler than 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting or, in the case ol a poll taken subsequenlly to the date
of the meeling or acjourned meeling, so as ta be received no later ihan 24 hours before the time appointed for iaking the poll. Depositing a completed form of
proxy will not praclude a member from attending the meeting and voting in person.

6. There will be available for inspection a the registered office of the Company on any weekday (except Saturday) during normal business hours from the date of
this nolice until the day of the Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for a period of 15 minules prior to and during the Annaual
General Meeting:

{a) a copy of the proposed new arlicles of association of the Company, and a copy of the existing memorandum and arlicles of association marked to show the
¢hanges being proposed in resolution 12;

{b) copies of the executive direclors’ service contracls;
(c) copies of the letars of appoiniment of the non-executive directors; and
(d) the register of directars’ interests in the shares af the Company.

7. A copy of the draft rules of the Business Pest Group Plc Long Tesm Ingentive Plan 2009 will be available for inspection al Hewill New Bridge Street at & More
Londen Place, London, SE1 2DA during normal business hours an any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and English public holidays excepted) until the close of the
Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual Generat Meeting for at teast 15 minules prior to and during the Annual Genera! Meeting.

8. The Company, pursuant lo Regulation 41 of the Uncertiied Securities Regulations 2001 specifies that only thase shareholders registered in the register of
members of the Company as at 12.00 pm on 13 July 2009 shall be entilled to atlend and vote al the aforesaid general meeting in respect of the number of shares
registered in their name at that time. Changes fo entries on the relevant register of securities after 12,00 pm on 13 July 2009 shall be disregardad in determining
the right of any persan to atlend or vole at the meeling.

9. Asat 20 May 2009 {being ihe last business day prior to The publication of this notice), the Company’s issued share capital was 54,674,237 shares, carrying one
vote each. Therefore, the tolal voling rights in the Company as at 20 May 2000 were 54,674,237,

i

f=1

. Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person nominated under seclion 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights (a “Neminated
Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the member by whom he/she was nominated, have a right to be appointed {or to have someone efse
appointed) as a proxy for the meeting. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment right or daes nof wish o exercise i, he/she may, under any such
agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder as lo the exercise of voting rights.

1

vy

. The statement ol the rights of members in relation lo the appointment of proxies in paragraphs 4 and 5 above does not 2pply io Nominated Persons. The righls
described in these paragraphs can only be exercised by members of the Company.

ENQUIRIES

Equiniti Limiled maintain the Company's share register. If you have any enquiries about the AGM or about your shareholging, you should contact €quiniti Limited at
Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA.

BATA PROTECTION STATEMENT

Yaur personal data includes alt data provided by you, or an your behalf, which relates te you as a shareheldes, including your name and conlact details, the voles you
cast and your Reference Mumber (attributed to you by the Company). The Company delermines the purposes for which and the manner in which your personal data
is 10 be processed. The Company and any third party 1o which it discloses the data (including the Company’s Registrars) may process your personat data for the
purpeses of compiling and updating the Company’s records, fuilling its legal obligations and processing the shareholder sighis you exercise.
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Notice of Meeting - Appendix 1

Summary of the principal terms of the Business Post Group Plc
Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 (the “Plan”)

1. Operation

The remuneration committee of the board of directors of the Company {the “Committee”) will supervise the operation of the Plan.

2. Eligibility

Any empfoyee (including an executive director) of the Company and its subsidiaries will be eligible to participate in the Plan at the discretion of the Commitiee.
3. Grant of awards

The Committee may grant awards to acquire ordinary shares in the Company (“Shares”) within six weeks following the Company's announcement of its results for
any peried. The Commilieg may atso grant awards within six weeks of shareholder appraval of the Plan or at any other lime when the Committee considers ihere are
exceplional circumnstances which justify the granting of awards. It is inlended that the first awards will be made shortly following the adoplion of the Plan.

The Committee may grani awards as conditional shares or a nil (or nominal) cost option with a set exercise period. The Commiltee may also decide to grant cash-
based awards of an equivalenl value to share-based awards or 1o satisfy share-based awards in cash, although it does not cureently intend to do so.

An award may not be granted more than 10 years afler shareholder approval of the Plan.
No payment is required for the grant of an award. Awards are not transferable, except on death. Awards are nt pensionable.
4. Individual limit

An employee may not receive awards in any linancial year over Shares having a markel value in excess of 100 per cent of his annual base salary in that financial year,
including anticipated dividend equivalent. In exceptional circumstances, such as recruitment or retention, this limit is increased lo 150 per cent of an employee’s
annual base salary.

5. Performance conditions
The vesting of awards made 10 senioi executives will be subject 1o performance conditions set by the Committee.

The performance conditions applying to the initial awards to be made 1o senior executives will be based on the Company's earnings per share {"EPS") and total
sharehoider return (*TSR") performance over a thiee-year performance pesiod commencing with the financial year in which Ihe awasds are granted.

50% of the shares subject to these initial awards will be subject to the EPS condition (lhe "EPS Tranche"). The remaining 50% of 1he shares subject to these awards
will be subject to the TSR condition (ihe "TSR Tranche™.

The vesting of the EPS Tranche will be determined by the Company's EPS growth over the performance period. 25% of the EPS Tranche will vest for annual growth
of 5% over the performance periad, with full vesting for annual growth of 9% over the performance period. These targets are regarded by the Commiltee as
challenging in the current economic environment, Assuming an improved economic outlock, the Commillee would expect lo set higher 1argets for EPS growth for
future awards.

The TSR condilion will be measured by ranking the Company's TSR performance over the performance pericd compared lo the TSR performance of the constituent
companies of the FTSE All Share Index {excluding investment lrusts), with 25% of the TSR Tranche vesling for median performance over the performance period rising
to 100% of the TSR Tranche vesting for upper quarli'e performance.

The Committge can se! diffeten performance conditions from those described above for fulure awards to senior executives provided thal, in the reasonable egpinion
of the Committee, 1he new targels are not materially fess challenging in the circumstances than those described above.

The Committee may also vary the perfermance condilions applying to existing awards if an event has occurred which causes the Cemmittee 1o consider that it would
be appropriate to amend the performance conditions, provided the Lommitlee considers the variation is fair and reasonable and not materizlly less challenging than
the original conditions would have been but for the event in gquestion.

6. Vesting of awards

Awards normatly ves! three years after ¢rant [o the exteni that the applicable performance conditions have been salislied and provided the participant is slill emptoyed
in the Company's group.

Vested awards granted in the form of options wikt 1apse ten years after their grant, if they have not been exercised or have nol lapsed earlier (see "Leaving employment*
and "Corporalg evenis” below).

7. Dividend equivalents

The Commitlee may decide that participants will receive a payment (payable in Shares unless the Commitiee decides otherwise in exceptional circumstances) on or
shartly fallowing the vesting or exereise of their awards of an amouni based on the vatue of the dividends thal would have been paid on Lhose Shares between the
lime when the awards were grantet and the fime when the underlying shares are issued or transferred 1o the participant fallawing the vesting or exercise of awards.
The basis lor calculating this amount may assume thas dividends were reinvested in further Shares on the relevant ex-dividend date.
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Notice of Meeting - Appendix 1

Summary of the principal terms of the Business Post Group Plc
Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 (the “Plan”)

8. Leaving employment

As a general rule, an award will Iapse upon a participani ceasing 10 hald emplayment or be a director within the Company's group. However, if 3 participant ceases lo be
an emplayee or a director because of his il! heallh, injury, disaility, retiremant, his emplaying company or the business for which he works being soid out of the Company's
group of in olher ¢ircumstances af the discretion of the Commitiee, his award will vest on the date when it would have vested if he had not ceased such employment or
office, subject to: (i) he performance conditions being satisfied at the end of the period over which the conditions are measured and (i) the pro-rating of the award to reflest
the reduced period of lime between the grani of the award and the participant's cessation of employment as a proportion of the normal three-year vesting period, although
Ihe Committee can decide not 1o pro-rate an award if it ragards it as inappropriate fo do 5o in the particutar circumstances.

If a participani ceases fo be an employee or director in the Company’s group for one of the “good leaver™ reasons specified above, he Committee can decide that his award
will vest when he leaves. The extent lo which an award will vest in these siluations will depend upon tws factors: (i) the extent to which the periormance conditions have
been satisfied by reference io the date of cessation; and {ii) pro-rating by reference to the time of the paniicipant’s cessation of employment as a proporiion of the vesting
periad as described above.

il 2 participant dies, his award will ves! on the date of kis death subject to: {i} he performance canditions measured at ihat time; and (i) pro-rating by reference to the date
of his death as described abave, although ihe Committee can decide, in exceptional circumstances, that his award will vest o the dale when it would have vested if he had
not died and the performance condition will be measured at that time.

In-any of the above "good leaver* circumstances, any vested awards granted as aptions may be exercised within a period of 12 months starting from the later ¢f (i) the date
on which the award vested and {ii) the date when the pariicipant ceased employment.

9. Corporate events

In the event of atakeover or winding up of the Company (not being an internal corporate reorganisation) all awards will vest early subject to: (i) the extent that the performance
tondilions have been satislied at that time; and (i} the pro-faling oi the awards to reflect the reduced peried of fime between their grani and vesting, alihgugh the Committee
can decide not to pro-rate an award if it regards it as inappropriate to do so in the parlicular circumstances.

In the event of an inlemat corporate rearganisation awards will be feplaced by equivalert new awards over shares in a new holding company unless the Commitiee decides
that awards should vest on the basis which would apply in the case of 2 12keover.

If'a demerger, special dividend or other similar event is proposed which, in he opinion of the Committee, would affect the market price of Shares to a material extent, then
the Commitlee may decide thal awards will vest on the basis which would apply in the case of a takeover as described above.

10. Participants’ righis
Awards will not confer any sharehalder rights until the awards have vested or the oplions have been exercised and the participants have received their Shares.
11. Rights attaching to Shares

Any Shares allotted when an award vess or is exercised will rank equally with Shares then in issue (except for rights arising by reference 10 a record date prigr 1o their
allotment).

12. Varlation of capial

In the event of any varialion of the Campany’s share capital or in the everd of a demerger, payment of a special dividend or similar evenl which materially affects the markel
price of the Shares, the Committee may make such adjustment as it considers appropriale 1o the number of Shares subject to an award and/or the exercise price payable

{if any).

13. Overall Plan fimits

The Plan may operate over new issue Shares, treasury Shares or Shares purchased in the market.

In any ten catendar year period, the Company may not issue (or grant rights 1o issue} more {han;
(ay 10 per cent of he issued ordinary share capital of the Company under the Plan and any other employee share plan adopled by the Company; and
(b) & per cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company under the Plan and any other executive share plan adopled by the Company.

Treasury Shares will count as new issue Shares for the purposes of these limils.

14. Afterations to the Plan

The Commitiee may, at any time, amend 1he Plan in any respect, provided that the prior aoproval of shareholders is obtzined for any amendmends that are 1o the advantage
of participants in respect of the neles goveming etigitility, limils on pasticipation, ihe overall timits on the issue of Shares or the fransfer of freasury Shares, the basis for
determining a participant's entitlement 1o, and the terms of, the Shares o cash 1o be acquired and the adjustment of awards.

The requirement to obiain the prior approval of shareholders will not, however, apply to any minor alierafion made (o benelit the administration of the Pian, 1o take accounl
of a change in legistation or to oblain or maintain favourable lax, exchange control or reguiatory treatment for participants or for &y company in the Companys group.
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Notice of Meeting - Appendix 2

Explanatory notes of principal proposed changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association

1. General

The proposed amendments to the Current Articles reflect changes in the law under the Companies Act 20086 that came into force in 2007 and 2008 and which will
come info farce on 1 Oclober 2009, to increase the limit on fees paid io Directors and to make certain clarilying and gonforming changes. The proposed amendments
will 2!l take effect, if approved, on t Qctober 2009,

2. The Company's objecls

The provisions regulating the operalions ¢f the Company are currently et qut in the Current Articles and the Memorandum of Association {"Memorandum™). The
Company’'s Memarandum contains the objects clause which sets out the scope aof the aclivities the Company is autharised 1o undertake. This clause is drafted to
Qive a wida scope.

Under the Companies Act 2006, the abjects ctause and all other provisions whith are currently confained in a company’s Memorzndum, for exisling companies at 1
October 2009, will be deemed to be contained in 2 company’s articles but can be removed by special resalution.

The Companies Aci 2006 further stales thal unless a company's articles pravide otherwise, a company's objects are umiesiicted. This abolishes the need for
companies to have objects clauses. For this reason the Company is propasing lo remove its objects clause, logether with all gther provisiens of its Memorandum
which, by viriue of the Companies Act 2006, are to be treated as forming gari of the Company's Articles as of 1 Oclaber 2009. The limited liability of members will
be preserved in the New Articles. Resolution 12 confirms the removal of these provisions for the Company.

3. Change of name

Currently, a company can only change its name by special feselution. The Companies Act 2006 additionally allows directors to resolve to change a company's narme,
provided they are so auihorised by the company's articles. The New Arlicles will give the Directors this power.

4, Form of resolution

The Current Artictes conlain a provision that, where for any purpose an ordinary resolulion is required, a special or extraordinary resolution is also effective and that,
where an extraordinary resclution is required, a special resolution is also effective. This provision is being removed as the concept of extzaordinary resolutions has
not been retained under the Companies Aci 2006.

The Current Arlicies enadie members to act by writien reselution. Under the Companies Act 2006 public companies can ne longer pass wrilten resolutions. These
provisions have therefore been removed in the New Articles.

8. Authorised share capita!

The Companies Acl 2005 abolishes the requirement for a company to have an authorised share capital and the Currenl Articles are being amended 1o reflect this. The
Directors will stifl be limited as to the number of shares they can &t any fime alfot because altaiment authority cantinues lo be required under the Companies Act
2008.

6. Redeemable shares

At present if a company wishes 1o issué redeemable shares it must include in ils articles the lerms and manner of redemption. The Companies Act 2006 enables
directors o determine such matters instead, provided they are so aulherised by the articles. The New Arlicles will conlain sugh an authorisalion, The Company has
ne plans lo issue redeemable shares but if it did so the Directors would seek sharehofders’ autharity fo issue new shares in the usual way.

7. Uncerlificated securities

The Current Articles are being updated 1o pesmil, and deal, with the holding of shares in the Company in uncertificated form, such as through CREST, in line wilh
markel practice.

8. Suspension of registration of share transfers

The Gurren) Articles permil the Direclors o suspend ihe registration of transfers. Under the Companies Act 2006, share lransfers must be registered as soon as
practicatle. The power in the Current Articles 1o suspend the registration of transfers is inconsistent with ihis requirement and therefore is being removed.

9. Adjournments

The Current Articles piovide Ihat the chairman of a general meeting can usually only adjourn general meetings with the consent of the meeting. The Directoss consider
that there will be situations where the chairman should have the Pexibilily 1o adjourn meetings and this has been provided in the New Articles.

10. Convening extraordinary and annual general meetings

The provisions of the Cument Articles dealing with the convening of general meelings and ihe tengih of nolice required lo canvene general meelings are being
conformed with the relevanl matiers provided for in the Companies Act 2006. In particular an extraordinary general meeting to consider a special resolution can be
convened on 14 ¢lear days' notice wheteas previously 21 clear days' notice was required.
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Notice of Meeting - Appendix 2

Explanatory notes of principal proposed changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association

11. General meetings

The New Articles will alsa pravide the Diractors and the chairman of any general meeting with the power to make arrangements for good order at general meetings
and o ensure the safety and security of attendees. in addition proposed amendments to ordinary resalutions will now need to be lodged with the Company al least
48 hours before the meeting to consider ihe ordinary resolution unless the chairman of the Company olherwise agrees.

12. Votes of members

Under the Companies A¢l 2006 proxies are entitled 1o vete on a show of hands whereas under the Cursent Arlicles proxies are only erditled to vate on a poll. The
time limits for the appaintment or termination of a proxy appointment have been altered by the Companies Act 2006 so that 1he articles cannot provide that they should
be received more than 48 hours beforg the meeting or in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after the meeting, more than 24 hours before the time for the
taking of a poll, with weekends and bark holidays being permitted to be excluded for this purpase. Mulliple proxies may be appainted provided ihat each proxy is
appointed 10 exeicise the rights altached ta a different share held by the sharehaider. The New Arlicles reflect all of these new provisions.

13. Limit on fees pald to directors

The New Adticles will increase the annual cap on the aggregate fees payable to Directors from £125,000 to £400,000 commencing with the curreni financial year.
The Yimit in the Currend Articles has nat been increased since 1993 and the Directors now consider it appropriate to increase the limit so that ihe Company has
sufficient flexibility 1o attract and refain non executive directors of the necessary calibre. Directors’ averall remuneration will continue to be disclosed in the
Remuneration Repori.

14. Appointment and retirement of directors

The Current Articles contain a provision imposing an age limit on directoss. Such provision could now fall foul of the Employment Equatity {Age) Regulations 2006
and so has been removed from the New Articles. !n adgition, the circumstances in which directors must cease to hold affice are being brought into line with the
madel articies of public companies produced by the Depariment of Business, Enterprise and Regutatory Relform,

15. Provision tor employees on cessation of business

The Companies Act 2006 affows diractors of a company to make provisions for payments fo empioyees or lormer emplayees in canneciion with Ihe cessation or
transfer of the business of the company, its subsidiaries or undertakings. The Companies Act 2006 stipulates that these powers may only be exercised by directors
if they are so authorised by the company's Arlicles or by the company in General Meeting. The New Articles will contain such a power.

16. Use of seals

The Companies Act 2006 provides an alternative option for the execution of documents (other than share cerlificates). The new provisions stale that when the seal
is affixed ¥ a docurnent it may be signed by one authorised person in the presence of a witness, whereas pieviously the requiremen! was for signature by either a
director and the secretary or two directors, or such other person or persons as the directors may approve.

17. Electronic and web communications

Provisions of the Companies Act 2006 which came intg force in January 2007 enable companies to communicate with members by electronic and/or website
communications. The New Arlicles will permit communications o members in electronic form and, in addilion, they will also permil the Company o tzke advantage
of the new provisions relating to website communications. Betore the Company can communicale with a member by means of electronic or website communications,
the relevant member must be asked individually by the Company to agree 1hat the Company may send or supply docurnents or information to him by those méans.
In the case of website communication, the Company must either have received a positive response or have received ng response within the period of 28 days
beginning with the date on which the request was sent. The Company will notify the member (either in writing, or by other permitted means} when a relevant document
or information is placed on the website and @ membes can always request a hard copy versien of the document or information.

18. Indemnity, insurance and defence expenditure

The Companies Act 2006 has in some areas widened the scope of the powers of a company 1o indemnify directars and 1o fund expenditure incurred in connection
with certain actions against direciors. The New Articles reflect these new provisions.

19. Other

Generally the opportunily has been taken to bring clearer language into the New Arlictes and to updale the language wsed in the Curent Arlicles and for other
legislative changes which do not have a material impact.
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Financial Calendar

15 July 2008 Annual General Meeting
22 July 2009 Shares become ex dividend
24 July 2009 Record date for dividend

14 August 2009 Payment for final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009
November 2009 Announcement of interim results and interim dividend for the year ending 31 March 2010

January 2010 Payment of interim dividend for the year ending 31 March 2010
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